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Registered Number 01821312
Strategic Report

The directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2015.
REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

Guardian Royal Exchange plc (the Company) is registered in England and its subsidiaries together form
the Guardian Royal Exchange Group (the Group). The principal activity of the Company is to act as a
holding company for its subsidiaries which underwrite genera! insurance and healthcare business mainly
in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland.

AXA Insurance provides general insurance to individuals and corporate customers, both through direct
and intermediated channels and through several major partners.

AXA PPP healthcare offers medical insurance, occupational health support, expert health information and
counselling and hospital care to individuals and corporate partners.

AXA Ireland provides general insurance in Ireland to individuals and corporate customers, both through
direct and intermediated channels and through several major partners.

Results and performance

Profit before tax for the Group increased by £37m to £263m (2014: £226m) in 2015, -arising from a
reduction of £73m in the investment result to £111m (2014: £184m) and an improvement of £110m in the
underwriting result to £152m (2014: profit £42m).

The revaluation of available for sale investments produced a loss of £151m (2014: £32m gain) and is
included in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

During the year, gross revenue from insurance contracts increased by £96m to £3,782m (2014: £3,686m),
as analysed below by business segment.

Healthcare

During the year, gross revenue from insurance contracts increased by £106m to £1,292m (2014:
£1,186m).
e Revenue and customer numbers continue to grow, both in the UK and internationally.

UK Property & Casualty

During the year, gross revenue from insurance contracts has decreased by £1m to £2,119m

(2014: £2,120m).

o Personal Lines saw decreased premiums compared to 2014 with Personal Lines Household and
Travel business areas seeing a reduction in volumes during 2015 due to strategic decisions to exit
unprofitable corporate partner business.

) Commercial Lines business written showed significant growth during 2015 across the portfolio,
primarily as a result of new business growth and improved premium retention on the existing
portfolio. :

. Direct Lines saw an increase in premiums compared to 2014 with the Motor business seeing an

increase in renewals, improved retention and higher new business.
ROI Property & Casualty

During the year, gross revenue from insurance contracts decreased by £9m to £371m (2014: £380m).

e The Irish insurance market remained challenging throughout 2015 and is expected to continue to
remain so in 2016, following the emergence of increased claims cost and frequencies. The impact
was partially offset through an increase in premium rates and reduction in operating expenses.
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The underwriting profit before tax for the year is £152m (2014: profit £42m), as analysed below by
business segment.

Healthcare

The underwriting profit before tax for the year was £55m (2014: profit £34m).
e The performance in the year reflects increased revenue and improvement in the net investment result.

UK Property & Casualty

The underwriting profit before tax for the year is £101m (2014: loss £40m).

e The improvement is driven by a fall in the loss ratio, relating to personal and direct lines, as earned
premiums have remained stable in comparison with the prior year.

e The improvement in the loss ratio is driven by the impact of rating actions and improvement in
business mix, following a reduction in exposure on loss making classes, which have had a positive
effect on the loss ratio. This has been offset by a number of large weather events during the year.

ROI Property & Casualty

The underwriting loss before tax for the year is £6m (2014: profit £45m).

e The deterioration is primarily due to the emergence of claims inflation leading to a change in
assumptions resulting in an increase in the average claims cost. The impact was partially offset by an
increase in premium rates, reflected across the market.

Other
The underwriting profit before tax for the year is £2m (2014: profit £3m).
Net investment result

The net investment return for the year, recorded within the consolidated statement of profit or loss is a
profit of £111m (2014: £184m) and further analysis is provided in note 4. The reduction in return
compared to the prior year is driven by the negative fair value movement in the mutual fund portfolio. In
addition, hedge accounting transferred fair value movements of the hedged asset portfollo to the
statement of profit or loss, thus aligning to changes in fair value of derivatives.

The total investment return, including the revaluation of available for sale financial assets through the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, has decreased by £259m to £(44)m (2014: £216m) and is
driven primarily by both unrealised and realised losses attributable to derivatives, compared to equivalent
gains in the prior year.

The procedures put in place by the Group identified all significant exposures to risk arising out of the
current financial market conditions. The valuation of financial instruments, where the market liquidity was
negatively affected or where no active market exists, was considered specifically, and all credit events that

occurred prior to 31 December 2015 have been considered.
Business environment

The UK insurance market is highly competitive and the Group has endeavoured to maintain strong
positions in the selected markets through developing a far greater customer understanding and focus.
The Group has increased its use of e-enabled systems, which allow brokers to interact directly with these
systems and improve the overall broker experience. The Group continues to look at ways of improving
claims management within an overall risk management approach.



Registered Number 01821312
Strategic Report continued
Strategy
The Group has in place a variety of methodologies to monitor and manage the risks it accepts and to plan
for increasing its involvement in its chosen markets. A number of initiatives are in place to deliver
profitable growth in these markets and distribution channels. The Group’s strategy is consistent with the
AXA Group global strategy of being the preferred company for customers, employees and shareholders.
Solid progress has been made in 2015 towards the strategic targets with the launch of new products and
improved control over operational costs as well as maintaining the customer focused programmes for
employees and improving IT stability.

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

The board monitors the progress of the Group using a variety of KPIs as noted below:

2015 2014
Premium receivables £3,932m £3,681m
Underwriting result £152m £42m Result of insurance activities
Current year loss ratio , 69.6% 70.0% Ratio of net current year claims
i} incurred to net earned premiums
Combined operating ratio 95.8% 98.8% Ratio of net claims incurred,
commissions, expenses and other
operating income to net eamed
' ) premiums
Operating result £273m £236m

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The AXA UK Group has an established process for risk acceptance and risk management, which is
addressed through a framework of policies, procedures and internal controls. All policies are subject to
ongoing review by management, risk management and group internal audit. Compliance with regulation,
legal and ethical standards is a high priority for the Group and the compliance and finance teams take on
an important oversight role in this regard. Line management is responsible for maintaining an internal
control framework to manage financial and operational risks, which is monitored regularly to ensure the
completeness, accuracy and integrity of the Group’s financial information.

The principal risks from the general insurance business arise mainly from events outside of the Group’s
control, such as fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of claims compared to expectations.
Underwriting, reserving and reinsurance strategies may also give rise to risk and uncertainty through
inaccurate pricing, inadequate reinsurance protection and inadequate reserving; these are largely within
management's control and strategies are communicated clearly throughout the business through policy
statements and guidelines.

Financial risk management, including the impact of risk on economic capital, is discussed in the
management of risks note set out on pages 36 to 46 of the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Group has a clear strategic business model focusing on traditional insurance and has maintained a
strong financial position despite the current conditions. Careful financial risk management strategies,
along with well established liquidity management practices, will ensure this is maintained in the future.

In 2016, the aim is to remain competitive by controlling costs and improving efficiency. At the same time
the Group will continue to invest for the long term to support its vision of being ‘Trusted Market Leader’;
this will ensure a strong foundation is being built for the future.

Signed on behalf of the Board by

NS

B. Poupart-Lafarge —
Director
26 April 2016

-
“,3
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Directors’ Report ‘

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Future developments are discussed in the Strategic Report.
GOING CONCERN

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Strategic Report. The ability to cope with unexpected risks to
the financial position is shown within management of risks note set out on pages 36 to 46 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has considerable financial resources, with large cash deposits in money market funds and long
term debenture borrowings (note 28). Detailed budgets, plans and forecasts have been prepared and
reviewed setting out the continued financial position of the Group for the next 12 months and a strategic
plan to 2020. As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

DIVIDENDS

The directors’ do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
£168m interim dividend).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of approval of the
financial statements are shown on page 2. The directors who have served for part of the year are given

below:

C. G. Bobby was appointed a director of the Company on 16 July 2015.
R. W. Organ resigned as a director of the Company on 30 April 2015.

Appointment of directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr B. Poupart-Lafarge will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, he will offer himself for re-
appointment.

Directors’ qualifying third party and pension scheme indemnity provisions

The Company is party to a group wide indemnity policy which benefits all of its current directors and is a
qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purpose of the Companies Act 2006.

The indemnification was in force during the year and at the date of approval of the financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group is committed to a policy of equal opportunity in recruitment, training, career development and
promotion of staff, irrespective of gender, marital status, ethnicity, nationality, sexual orientation and
religion. Full and fair consideration is also given to disabled persons, including the rehabilitation and
retention of staff who become disabled, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities.

Great importance is placed on good communication with employees and in seeking to inform and involve
staff in the development of the AXA UK Group operations and in the achievement of the global business
goals.

A full range of written, audio, video and regular face-to-face communications, including team briefings,
regular appraisals, company newspapers and various bulletins is used. Regular consultation is maintained
with independent and certified trade unions on the complete range of employment and business issues.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Information on the use of financial instruments by-the Group and its management of financial risk is
disclosed in the management of risks note set out on pages 36 to 46 of the consolidated financial

statements. In particular the Group’s exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk are separately
disclosed in that note.

BRANCHES OUTSIDE THE UK

The Group does not operate branches outside the UK.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The AXA UK Group has a significant in-house IT function and in line with the Group strategy a key focus is

on design and development of new and improved IT processes and platforms, elements of this work

constitute research and development.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Group made no donations for palitical purposes.

EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no post balance sheet events which require discloéure,

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

Each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved confirms that:

a) sodfar as he is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditor is unaware;
an

b) bhe has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of that information.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to Group reporting under IFRS; and the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether IFRS as adopted by the European Union and applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
Group and Parent Company financial statements respectively; and

e prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Groups financial statements, Article ‘4 of the IAS
Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of the Board by

—

B. Poupart-Lafarge —
Director
26 April 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Guardian Royal Exchange plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Guardian Royal Exchange plc (the ‘Group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,
the Accounting Policies and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by
the European Union.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. This report is made solely to
the Company’s members, as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law; we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's web-site www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its profit for
the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation. .

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the financial year for

which the Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the Group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e the group financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

10
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Group Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial statements of Guardian Royal Exchange
plc for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Andrew Goldswort enior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

E1W 10D

26 April 2016

11



Consolidatéd Statement of Profit or Loss

for the year ended 31 December 2015

Registered Number 01821312

2015 2014
£m £m

Insurance revenue

Insurance premium revenue 3,782 3,686

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (154) (151)
Net insurance revenue 3 3,628 3,535
Other income

Investment income 4 227 251

Net realised gains and losses relating to investments at cost and

at fair value through shareholders' equity 4 36 39

Net realised gains and losses and change in fair value of

investments at fair value through profit or loss 4 (107) (45)

Change in investment impairments 4 (20) (36)

Other operating income 5 256 189
Total income 4,020 3,933
Policyholder claims and benefits

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 7 (2,560) (2,503)

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

recoverable from reinsurers 7 35 29

Other expenses

Insurance contract acquisition expenses 8 (717) (752)

Marketing and administration expenses 8 (355) (348)

Cost of asset management senvices 4 (15) (15)

Other operating expenses 6 (135) (108)
Operating result ’ 273 236
Finance costs 10 (10) (10)
Profit before tax 263 226
Income tax expense 11 (58) (45)
Profit for the period attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company 1 205 181
Basic earnings per share (pence per share) 12 19.33 17.08
Diluted earnings per share (pence per share) 12 19.33 17.08

All transactions relate to continuing operations.

The information on pages 18 to 82 forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

12



Registered Number 01821312
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit for the period after tax 205 181

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to the
Income Statement
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit schemes 32 33 (87)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the
Income Statement
Exchange losses on revaluation of subsidiary

net assets (13) (23)
Revaluation (losses)/gains of available for sale

financial assets 25 (151) 32
Fair value loss on hedge accounting derivatives 25 4) -
Tax effect of items not recognised in income statement

and taken directly to equity - deferred 31 25 5
Other Comprehensive Income net of tax (110) (73)

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company 95 108

The information on pages 18to 82 forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

13
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Goodwill and intangible assets 16 407 389
Property, plant and equipment 14 72 57
Investment properties 15 139 131
Investment in financial assets 19 5,865 5,883
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract liabilities 20 166 179
Deferred acquisition costs 17 310 293
Deferred taxation 31 128 1562
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 21 1,380 1,208
Other receivables 22 620 591
Cash and cash equivalents 23 607 549
Total assets 9,694 9,432

The information on pages 18 to 82 forms an integra! part of these consolidated financial statements.

14
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 24 56 . 56
Share premium 24 523 523
Other resenves 25 709 ' 848
Retained eamings 1,309 1,072
Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity shareholders 2,597 2,499
LIABILITIES
Technical provisions - insurance contract liabilities 26 5,707 5,637
Borrowings 28 154 162
Insurance and reinsurance liabilities 27 339 396
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 29 99 76
Retirement benefit obligations 32 57 135
Other liabilities 30 640 . 486
Current taxation 24 49
Derivative financial instruments 19 77 92
Total liabilities 7,097 6,933
Total equity and liabilities 9,694 9,432

The information on pages 18 to 82 forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 12 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 April 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

NS~ LA

B. Poupart-Lafarge
Director

15



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Registered Number 01821312

Ordinary share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total

2015 £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 56 523 848 1,072 2,499
Profit for the period - - - 205 205
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit schemes - - - 33 33
Fair value losses on available for sale

financial assets - - (151) - (151)
Fair value loss on hedge accounting derivatives - - 4) - (4)
Tax on movements in Statement of

Comprehensive Income - deferred - - 29 4) 25
Exchange on revaluation of subsidiary net

assets - - (13) - (13)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - (139) 234 95
Transactions with owners
Share based payments - - - 3 3
Balance as at 31 December 56 523 709 1,309 2,597

Ordinary share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total

2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 56 523 845 1,134 2,558
Profit for the period - - - 181 181
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit scheme: - - - (87) (87)
Fair value gains on available for sale -

financial assets - - 32 - 32
Tax on movements in Statement of -

Comprehensive Income - deferred - - 6) 11 5
Exchange on revaluation of subsidiary net - - (23) - (23)

assets -
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 3 105 108
Transactions with owners
Dividend - - - (168) (168)
Share based payments - - - 1 1
Balance as at 31 December 56 523 848 1,072 2,499

The information on pages 18 to 82 forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

16
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 - 2014
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 33 118 1
Income taxes paid (34) (16)
Interest paid (10) (10)
Interest received 219 244
Dividends received 28 27
Net cash generated from operating activities 321 . 246
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from:
Sale of investments 1,260 1,695
Loan repayment received from related party 9 300
Purchases of:
Investments (1,495) (2,046)
Property, plant and equipment 14 9) 4)
Intangible assets 16 4) (3)
Investments in subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) 2 -
Net cash used in investing activities (237) (58)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid - (168)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 84 20
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 536 518
Exchange (loss) on cash and cash equivalents - (18) (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2015 23 602 536

The information on pages 18 to 82 forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

17



Registered Number 01821312
Accounting Policies

General Information

Guardian Royal Exchange plc (the Company) and its subsidiaries together form the Guardian Royal
Exchange Group (the Group). The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company for its
subsidiaries which underwrite general insurance and healthcare business in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland.

Guardian Royal Exchange plc is a public limited company under the Companies Act 2006, which has a
debenture listed on the London Stock Exchange and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The
address of its registered office is 5 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1AD.

Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

I. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS IC") as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available
for sale financial investments and financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires management to monitor
and exercise judgment in the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies and in the
use of accounting estimates. Those areas which could have a significant impact to the consolidated
financial statements are set out on page 35.

As recommended by International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’, assets and liabilities are generally classified in the Statement of Financial Position in
increasing order of liquidity, which is more relevant for financial institutions than a classification
between current and non-current items. As for most insurance companies, expenses are classified by
destination in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. The
directors believe that the current year presentation is appropriate and has no impact on the results or
net assets of the Company.

The financial statements of the parent Company are presented on pages 83 to 91.
a) Changes in presentation

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. The
following standards/amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time.

IAS 19 (amendments) ‘Employee Benefits (revised 2011)’

These narrow scope amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to
defined benefit plans. The objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service, for example,
employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. The Group
adopted the amendments with effect from 1 July 2014, with no material impact on the financial
statements.

Annual improvements 2012 and 2013 (amendments)

The IASB’s annual improvements process addresses a series of narrow scope amendments to
existing standards that do not form part of a major project. The annual improvements for the 2010
to 2012 and 2011 to 2013 reporting cycle amended nine standards. The Group adopted the
amendments with effect from 1 July 2014, with no material impact on the financial statements.

18
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Accounting policies continued

b) Issued accounting pronouncements

There are a number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations relevant
to the Group's future financial reporting periods which are listed below.

IFRS 9 (new standard) ‘Financial instruments’

IFRS 9 introduced new classification and measurements requirements in 2009 and 2010, with a
new hedge accounting model published in 2013. In July 2014 the final version of the standard
was published replacing the earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to
replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The standard is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, subject to EU endorsement. The Group
is assessing the impact of IFRS 9.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) ‘Consolidated Financial Statements and Investment in
Associates’

These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in
IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised
when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain
or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if
these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 subject to EU endorsement. It is not expected that the
amendments will have a material impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 11 (amendments) ‘ Joint Arrangements’

These amendments on Joint arrangements add new guidance on how to account for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The amendments specify
the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions. The amendments have been endorsed
by the EU and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

IAS 16 and IAS 38 (amendments) ‘Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets’

in this amendment the IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the
depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes
the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The IASB has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an
inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an
intangible asset. The amendments have been endorsed by the EU and are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 15 (new standard) ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers.

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the
ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. Companies using IFRS
will be required to apply the revenue standard for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, subject to EU endorsement. The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 (new standard) ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both the lessor and the lessee. Under the IFRS 16 model the lessee is
required to recognise (i) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset.is of low value; and (ii) depreciation of lease assets separately from
interest on lease liabilities in the income statement.
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Lessors will continue to classify and account for their leases as (i) operating leases with
recognition of the underlying assets; or (ii) finance leases by derecognising the underlying asset
and recognition of a net investment, similar to the current IAS 17 requirements. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, subject to EU endorsement.
The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 16.

IAS 1 (Amendment) ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

The amendment clarifies guidance in IAS 1 on materiality and aggregation, the presentation of
subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments form a part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative, which explores how financial
statement disclosures can be improved. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. It is not expected the amendment will have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Annual improvements 2012 to 2014 (amendments)

The |ASB's annual improvements process addresses a series of narrow scope amendments to
existing standards. The annual improvements amended four standards which were endorsed by
the EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2015 and 1 January 2016. It is
not expected the amendment will have a material impact on the financial statements.

The Group will be affected by the following long term projects:

IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’

Phase | of the project primarily enhanced disclosures surrounding the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows from insurance contracts. Phase |l is aimed at providing a single
principle based standard on accounting for all types of insurance contracts and addresses
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure. The initial exposure draft on IFRS 4
Phase Il issued in July 2010 introduced a current measurement model based on a building block
approach; and the revised exposure draft issued in June- 2013 maintained the current
measurement model but introduced alternate methods to address earnings volatility. The
consultation period concluded in February 2016, with the IASB aiming to publish a final standard
by the end of 2016. It is anticipated that the IASB will allow a period of approximately three years
after issuance of a final standard as the effective date.

Solvency i

Solvency Il reporting came into effect on 1 January 2016. The Solvency Il framework is based on
three main pillars: (1) Pillar 1 consists of the quantitative requirements around own funds,
valuation rules for assets and liabilities and capital requirements; (2) Pillar 2 sets out requirements
for the governance and risk management of insurers, as well as for the effective supervision of
insurers including the requirement for insurers to submit an Own Risk and Solvency Assessment
(ORSA) which will be used by the regulator as part of the supervisory review process; and (3)
Pillar 3 focuses on disclosure and transparency requirements. The Group continues to meet its
regulatory capital requirements based on AXA'’s approved internal model.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows of the parent Company and its subsidiaries, presented as a single economic entity.
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where
it has exposure or the rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity, with the ability
to effect the amount of return through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated from the date on which
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The Group
recognises, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest at the acquisition date. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.
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The consideration transferred in a business combination is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the consideration transferred is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition related costs are expensed in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Associates are all entities in which the Group has significant influence but not control and are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and recognised on the Statement of Financial
Position at cost plus post-acquisition movements in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate less allowances for impairment losses.

The Group's investment in specialised investment vehicles, such as unit trusts, is consolidated
when control is achieved with the interests of third parties shown as ‘net asset value attributable to
unit holders’ in ‘other liabilities’ in the Statement of Financial Position. Where the Group does not
control such vehicles, these are designated as financial assets held at fair value through profit or
loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segmental reporting

The segment analysis provided in the annual report and financial statements reflect operating
business segments, which is based on four business lines: Healthcare, UK Property & Casualty,
Republic of Ireland Property & Casualty and Other Group Activities. Other Activities comprise the
applicable results of service companies, international property & casualty agencies, central
functions and any elimination adjustments.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional
currency). The consolidated Group and parent Company financial statements are presented in
sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentational currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss in ‘other operating income’, ‘other operating expenses’ and ‘finance
costs’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available for sale, are included in Other Comprehensive Income.

21



Vi

Registered Number 01821312
Accounting policies continued

c) Group entities

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency which
is not sterling are translated into sterling as follows:

e The assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate
ruling at the date of that balance sheet.

e Income and expenses for each Statement of Profit or Loss presented are translated at
average exchange rates for the period in question; unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rates on the transaction dates.

+ All resulting exchange differences are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
an integral part of that entity and translated to sterling at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Product classification

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. A contract which transfers significant
insurance risk is an insurance contract whether or not it also transfers financial risk. An insurance
contract is a contract under which the Group (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Group
defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of the
insured event that are more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Investment contracts are contracts that carry financial risk with no significant insurance risk.
General insurance contracts - recognition and measurement

The results are determined on an annual basis whereby the incurred cost of claims, commission and
related expenses are charged against the earned proportion of premiums, net of reinsurance as
follows:

a) Insurance premiums

Premiums written comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided
by business incepted during the reporting period, recognised on the date on which the policy
commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the reporting period for premiums
receivable in respect of business written in prior reporting periods; and estimates of premiums due
but not yet received or notified to the Group.

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of premiums written in the year that relate to
unexpired terms of policies in-force at the balance sheet date, calculated on a time apportionment
basis or having regard to the incidence of risk. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods
is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

b) Insurance claims

Claims incurred comprise claims and related expenses paid in the year and changes in the
provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and for
claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNR and IBNER, respectively) and related expenses,
together with any adjustments to claims from previous years. Where applicable, deductions are
made for salvage and other recoveries.
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c) Technical provisions

A provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled,
including the cost of IBNR claims and IBNER to the Group. The estimated cost of claims includes
expenses to be incurred in settling claims and a deduction is made for the expected value of
salvage and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given -the uncertainty in
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the
original liability established.

The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group (that is, the IBNER provision),
where more information about the claim event is generally available.

Claims IBNR may often not be apparent to the insurer until many years after the event giving rise
to the claim has occurred. Classes of business where the IBNR proportion of the total reserve is
high will typically display greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because
of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these reserves. Classes of business where claims
are reported relatively quickly after the claim event tend to display lower levels of volatility. In
calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the Group uses a variety of estimation techniques,
generally based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the
development pattern of the current claims will be consistent with past experience.

An allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which may create distortions in the
underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when
compared with the cost of previously settled claims including: ’

e changes in Group processes which might accelerate or slow down the development and/or
recording of paid or incurred claims compared with the statistics from previous periods;

e changes in the legal environment;

o the effects of inflation;

e changes in the mix of business;

e the impact of large losses; and

e movements in industry benchmarks.

A component of these estimation techniques is usually the estimation of the cost of notified but not
paid claims. In estimating the cost of these, the Group has regard to the claim circumstances as
reported, any information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling
claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being
measured on a case by case basis or large claims projected in aggregate, but separately to other
losses in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of the development and incidence of these
large claims.

Where possible the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions.
This assists in giving greater understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also assist in setting the range of possible
outcomes. The most appropriate estimation techniques are selected and combined, taking into
account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the

amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due
regard to collectability.
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Property, aviation and accident business

Property, aviation and accident business is short tail, that is, there is not generally a significant
delay between the occurrence of the claim and the claim being reported to the Group. The costs
of claims notified to the Group at the balance sheet date are estimated on a case by case basis to
reflect the individual circumstances of each claim.

The ultimate expected cost of claims is projected from this data by reference to statistics which
show how estimates of claims incurred in previous periods have developed over time to reflect
changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims and late notifications.
Adjustments are made to allow for movements in the variables described above.

Healthcare business

Healthcare business is short tail. The total costs of claims paid by the Group at the balance sheet
date is used to project the expected total cost for claims incurred by reference to statistics which
show how the total cost of claims paid in previous periods have developed over time.

Motor business

Motor claims are made up of short tail property damage claims and longer tail personal injury
claims. For the former type of claim, the total costs of claims incurred and/or paid by the Group at
the balance sheet date is used to project the ultimate expected total cost of claims incurred. This
is done by reference to statistics that show how the total cost of claims incurred or paid in previous
years has developed over time. In all cases adjustments are made to allow for movements in the
variables described above.

The personal injury element of motor claims costs is estimated using the same methods as used
for liability claims described below.

Liability and marine claims

Liability and marine claims are long tail in comparison to those classes of business previously
described; in which case a larger element of the claims provision relates to IBNR claims. Claims
estimates are derived using one or more of the following methods:

1. A combination of loss ratio based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims

experience using a predetermined formula whereby greater weight is given to actual claims
experience as time passes.
The initial estimate of the loss ratio, based on the experience of previous years adjusted for
factors such as premium rate changes and claims inflation and on the anticipated market
experience, is an important assumption in this estimation technique. In respect of liability
claims, the assessment of claims inflation and anticipated market experience is particularly
sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent on matters of
contract and tort.

2. Using the costs of claims notified to the Group at the balance sheet date which are estimated
on a case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each claim. The ultimate
expected cost of claims is projected from this data by reference to statistics which show how
estimates of claims incurred in previous periods have developed over time to reflect changes
in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims and late notifications. Adjustments
are made to allow for movements in the variables described above.

3. As per method 2 above but splitting the total case-by-case cost of notified claims into the cost
of each and every claim capped at £100k and the excess amount over £100k.
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4. By splitting the total case-by-case cost of notified claims into three band sizes (attritional,
large and very large). The ultimate expected cost of claims in each band is then estimated by
reference to the projected number of claims (based on statistics showing how the number of
notified claims have been developed over time) and the anticipated average final cost of
notified and IBNR claims (based on historical levels adjusted to allow for movements in the
variables described above).

The liability class of business is also exposed to the potential emergence of new types of latent
claims but no allowance is included until evidence of the existence of such claims is received by
the Group.

Disease-related and pollution claims arising from liability business

The claims provisions include amounts in respect of potential claims relating to diseases including
those associated with exposure to asbestos, noise-induced hearing loss and environmental
pollution. Legislative and judicial actions to date have failed to determine the basis of liability to
indemnify losses. These claims are not expected to be notified and settled for many years and
there is considerable uncertainty as to the amounts at which they will ultimately be settled. The
level of the provision has been set on the basis of the information that is currently available
including potential outstanding loss advices, experience of development of similar claims and case
law.

Whilst the directors consider that the gross provision for claims and the related reinsurance
recoveries are fairly stated on the basis of the information currently available to them, the ultimate
liability may vary as a result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant
adjustments to the amount provided. In particular, the extent of the cost of claims for asbestos
related diseases may change as more information becomes publicly available and claims reserves
are updated accordingly. Adjustments to the amounts of provision are reflected in the financial
statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the
estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

A provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
balance sheet date, including the cost of claims IBNR to the Group. The estimated cost of these
claims is assessed on a consistent basis with gross of reinsurance claims allowing for the
reinsurance retention or proportion recoverable, adjusted to reflect changes in the nature and
extent of the Group’s reinsurance programme over time. An assessment is also made of the
recoverability of reinsurance recoveries, having regard to market data on the financial strength of
each of the reinsurance companies.

d) Salvage and subrogation

e)

Salvage applies to the proceeds of repaired, recovered, or scrapped property that the Group is
permitted to sell; property which is acquired in settling a claim. Subrogation refers to the proceeds
recovered through negotiation or legal action against third parties.

Estimated recoveries in respect of notified claims are included within other receivables.

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that relate to unearned premium are capitalised as an

intangible asset and amortised over the terms of the policies as premium is earned. All other
acquisition costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
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Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, the Group evaluates its unexpired risks to assess whether there are
sufficient unearned premiums, after taking account of future investment income on the
investments, to cover expected future claims and expenses. If following these assessments a
deficiency is identified, the DAC asset for the associated grouping is initially reduced, and where
this is insufficient a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision) is established.

Receivables and other liabilities related to insurance and reinsurance contracts

Receivables and other liabilities are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and
from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired. Where such
evidence exists, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly
and recognises that impairment loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Goodwill and intangible assets

a)

b)

c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiary companies and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the recoverable amount is calculated and compared to the carrying value.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The
unit to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Software development

Costs associated with major software developments are capitalised where such expenditure is
expected to generate future economic benefits and can be reliably measured. The asset is
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life, subject to a maximum period of 5
years.

Advanced Commissions
Commission advanced to intermediaries in anticipation of the introduction of new business is

initially recognised at cost and subsequently amortised over the period during which it is expected
that the benefit will be received, with useful lives ranging from two to three years.

d) Other intangibles

Other intangible assets can arise on the acquisition of a portfolio of contracts directly from another
insurer or through the acquisition of a subsidiary company; this represents the value of business
acquired. The Group amortises the asset over the estimated useful life, subject to a maximum
period of 15 years.
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Property, plant and equipment

a)

b)

c)

Property

Property comprises mainly property occupied by the Group. Property is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and an allowance for impairment, where appropriate. Historical
cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method on the basis of their expected useful lives,
up to a maximum of 50 years.

Leasehold improvements included relate to refurbishment and fit out of operational property. The
expected useful life will vary in accordance with the term of the lease up to a maximum of 50
years, depreciated using the straight line method.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment comprise mainly computer hardware, furniture and fittings. Plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and an allowance for
impairment, where appropriate. Historical cost includes the original purchase price of the asset
and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method on the basis of their expected
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The expected useful economic
life of plant and equipment is 5 years.

Motor vehicles

Motor vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and an allowance for impairment,
where appropriate.

Motor vehicles are depreciated using the straight line method on the basis of their expected useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The expected useful economic life of
motor vehicles is 5 years.

Investment property

Investment properties comprise freehold and long leasehold land and buildings. Investment
properties are held for long term rental yield and/or capital appreciation, and are not occupied by
the companies in the Group.

Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation; and are depreciated
using the straight line method on the basis of their expected useful lives, up to a maximum of 50
years.

In the event of an unrealised loss over 15%, impairment is recognised for the difference between
the net book value of the investment property and the fair value of the asset based on an
independent valuation.

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss;
available for sale; and loans and receivables. The classification of financial assets is determined

on initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired or
originated. :
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A financial asset is recognised on the date on which the Group enters into a commitment to
purchase or sell the asset, the trade date. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

a)

b)

d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term are classified as held for trading.
Investments are designated at fair value through profit or loss in those instances where the fair
value of the asset determines the value of the liabilities arising under insurance and investment
contracts, and to do otherwise would result in an accounting mismatch. These financial assets
are recognised initially at their fair value, with transaction costs expensed in the Statement of
Profit or Loss; and subsequently re-measured at fair value with movements in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets include equity securities, debt securities and mutual funds.
Financial assets designated as available for sale are not classified into the categories of loans
and receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. These financial assets are recognised initially at their fair value, including transaction
costs; and subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income in the revaluation reserve. When the asset is disposed or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustment recognised in the revaluation reserve is
transferred to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair
value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment and transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method with gains and losses recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss, when the asset or liability is derecognised or impaired. Other
assets classified as loans and receivables include ‘other receivables’ in note 22 and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in note 23. Private loans are carried at amortised cost, less impairment,
using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets is best established through quoted prices in an active market.
An active market is where quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency; and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. If the market for a
financial instrument is not active, the Group uses recognised valuation techniques to determine
fair value. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models
and, where available, evidence of arm’s length transactions in similar assets. The inputs to
these models are largely derived from observable market data; but where observable market
data are not available, management judgement is applied to factors including model risks,
liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk.

The fair value of over the counter (OTC) derivatives is determined using counterparty
valuations. Where counterparty valuations are not available, fair value is derived from an
external proprietary model (Sophis) or internal models validated by AXA Investment Managers.

Asset backed securities are valued on a mark to market basis. In the absence of market prices

or if there are inconsistencies inherent in the prices received from contributors; proxies or mark
to model valuations approved by AXA Investment Managers may be used.
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AXA Private Equity assets are valued by the relevant manager in accordance with the
guidelines from the European Venture Capital Association (EVCA), Association Frangaise des
Investisseurs en Capital (AFIC) and the British Venture Capital Association (BVCA).

Fund of hedge funds are valued using estimated fund prices which are received directly from
the fund manager.

There can be no assurance that the valuations on the basis of these models and
methodologies represent the price for which a security may ultimately be sold or for which it
could be sold at any specific point in time. Use of different models, methodologies and/or
assumptions may have a material impact on the estimated fair value amounts and could have
a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition.

Xl. Impairment of assets
a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated.

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account and the
amount of the reversal is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Available for sale financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset has been impaired. For debt securities, the group applies the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a
‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is evidence that
the assets are impaired. The Company treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% and ‘prolonged’
generally as greater than six months.

In the event of such evidence surfacing for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not been
derecognised. The cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. An impairment loss recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss on equity instruments classified as available for sale is not reversed
through profit or loss, but recognised in equity.
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c) Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include futures, options, forward foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate swaps, credit default swaps and currency swaps; these are used to mitigate risk such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign currency risks
and interest rate risks, respectively. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Derivative financial instruments are designated as held for trading and measured at fair value, with
gains and losses recognised in profit or loss, unless they are designated as an effective hedging
instruments.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price, that
is, the fair value of the consideration given or received. The fair value of a derivative that is not
traded in an active market is determined through valuation techniques, whose variables include
mostly data from observable markets. Valuation techniques include: using recent arm's length
market transactions between knowledgeable willing parties, if available; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis; and
option pricing models.

Embedded derivatives are deemed to be closely related if either the market value or amortised
cost of the combined contract is within 10% of the nominal amount. Embedded derivatives that
are not closely related to their host contracts and meet the definition of a derivative are separately
recorded and measured at fair value through profit or loss if the impact is deemed material.

a) Hedge accounting

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
e fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability; or
e cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the hedge effectiveness, both at inception
and on an ongoing basis, indicating the actual or expected effectiveness level of the derivatives
used in hedging transactions in offsetting changes in the fair values of the hedged underlying
items.

b) Fair value hedge

The Group only applies fair value hedge accounting to hedge the interest rate risk of
designated fixed income securities. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated

- and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit or Loss, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk.

Derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes and the movements on fair value
hedges are disclosed in note 19.
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c) Cash flow hedge

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the Profit and Loss Account
when the hedged transaction affects profit and loss, such as when hedged financial income or
financial expense is recognised. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or
liability, the amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the initial carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or
firm commitment affects profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes and the movements on cash flow
hedges are disclosed in note 19.

d) Ineffective hedge

At the end of each month the hedge relationship is assessed using a retrospective
effectiveness test. In those instances where it is determined that a hedge relationship is no
longer effective, hedge accounting ceases to be applied from that point, with the accounting
treatment reverting back to that applied for equivalent non-hedged items. Movements in the
fair value of hedging instruments that represent ineffective proportions of qualifying hedge
relationships are recognised in profit and loss immediately.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, bank overdrafts and other cash
equivalents within the controlled cash mutual fund investment. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments which are subject to an insignificant risk of a change in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are treated as equity when the instruments incur no obligation to transfer cash or
any other asset to the holder. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments are deducted from equity.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with
movements recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and

when there is an intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is
recognised as income or expense and included in profit or loss for the period. The exception being
the current and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or Other
Comprehensive Income is recognised in equity or Other Comprehensive Income and not in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the
countries in which the Group and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions substantively taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. '

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same fiscal authority.

Employee benefits

The Group operates defined benefit plans, defined contribution plans and post-employment
medical plans.

a) Pension obligations

Staff engaged in the Group's activities, excluding employees of AXA Ireland which has its own
pension scheme, are members of the AXA UK Pension Scheme (the Scheme). The Scheme
supports a number of companies in the AXA UK Group, through both defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes. The defined benefit schemes shares risks between the companies in the
AXA UK Group and are not facilitated by a contractual agreement or stated policy to charge the
individual companies the net defined benefit cost. As the outcome of various restructuring
activities and movement of staff between companies in the AXA UK Group, it is not feasible to
allocate the defined benefit scheme assets and liabilities to individual participating companies.

Consequently, the Group recognises its contribution payable for the period as permitted by IAS 19
‘Employee benefits (revised 2011)’ for defined benefit plans that share risks between companies
under common control.

A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods. The .contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Under a defined benefit plan, the Group has an obligation to provide the agreed benefits to current
and former employees and depends on factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
The liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent qualified
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds of a consistent currency and
estimated term to match the obligation.

Under defined benefit plans, other than the AXA UK Pension Scheme, the Group determines the
following amounts recognised in profit or loss immediately: ‘

¢ The current service cost represents the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current period.

e The past service cost, including a curtailment or settlement, represents the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods.

e Net interest on the net defined benefit liability is the product of the net defined benefit pension
liability/(asset) and the discount rate.

The following re-measurements are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

e Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions, distinguished between demographic and financial assumptions.

e The return on plan assets comprise interest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets; and excludes amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability.

b) Other post-employment obligations

c)

One subsidiary company provides post-employment healthcare benefits to retired employees. The
accounting methodology for a defined benefit plan is applied and the liability is valued annually by
independent qualified actuaries. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in equity through Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date. The Group recognises the cost of termination benefits when it is either
contractually committed to the provision or it relates to the termination of employment of current
employees in accordance with a formal plan from which the Group cannot realistically withdraw.

d) Profit sharing and bonus plans

Employees benefit from profit sharing arrangements based on a formula which factors in both
personal performance of the employee and profitability of the applicable AXA group company. The
Group recognises a provision for the cost of profit sharing and bonuses when contractually obliged
to do so.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estirnate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal

restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been announced to those
affected. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the benefits expected to be derived from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Leases

Leases are classified as operating leases where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset concerned are retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating
leases, less any incentives received from the lessor, are charged/(credited) to the Statement of
Profit or Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Dividend distributions

Interim dividends are recognised as a distribution when paid and final dividends are recognised as
a liability when approved by the shareholders through a written resolution.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services
rendered and is recognised as follows:

a) Premiums

Premiums from insurance contracts represent the primary source of revenue for the Group and
are detailed in paragraph VI(a) of the accounting policies.

b) Services rendered
The Group receives commission from other insurers where insurance is offered by the Group
in support of its own policies but is underwritten elsewhere. Such commission is recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss when it becomes due.

¢) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss as it accrues and is calculated
by using the effective interest rate method.

d) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
when it becomes due.

e) Interest charges made to policyholders
Other operating income includes charges made to policyholders under the Consumer Credit
Act where premiums are paid by instalments. The interest income is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss as it is earned using the effective interest rate method. The
deferred portion is located in the line item ‘accruals and deferred income’ in note 30.

f) Dividend income

Dividend income on available for sale assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
when the right to receive payment is established. '
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying
Accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The areas that the directors consider particularly susceptible to changes in
estimates and assumptions are detailed below:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Insurance contract liabilities

The carrying value of insurance contract liabilities at the reporting date is £5,707m (2014: £5,537m).
The judgements, estimates and assumptions employed in the assessment of the adequacy of
provisions for unearned premiums and outstanding claims are set out in accounting policy VI and
note 26.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The carrying value at the reporting date of goodwill is £377m (2014: £361m) and other intangible
assets are £30m (2014: £28m). In accordance with accounting policy VII ‘goodwill and intangible
assets’, impairment reviews occur at least on an annual basis where the recoverable amounts are
determined of the respective specific assets. Details of the key assumptions used in the estimation of
the recoverable amounts are contained in note 16.

Fair value of financial assets and derivative financial instruments

Where fair value cannot be derived from active markets or quoted prices, it is determined using
valuation techniques. The inputs to these valuation techniques are largely derived from observable
market data; but where observable market data is not available, management judgement is applied to
factors including model risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. These are set out in
accounting policy X ‘financial assets’, X| ‘impairment of assets’ and Xl ‘derivative financial
instruments’; and note 19. Sensitivity information for financial assets and derivative financial
instruments are set out in the ‘management of risk’ note.

Deferred taxation

The carrying value at the reporting date of the net deferred tax asset is £128m (2014: £152m), further
details of which are disclosed in accounting policy XVIl and note 31. A deferred tax asset is
recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is applied to determine the deferred tax asset that can be recognised and is
based on the probability of future taxable profits.

Retirement benefit obligations

The carrying value of the retirement benefit obligation at the reporting date is £567m (2014: £135m).
The actuarial valuation employed in determining the retirement benefit obligation involves making
assumptions surrounding discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Details of the key assumptions used in the estimates are set out in accounting policy XVIII
and note 32.

Deferred acquisitions costs

The carrying value at the reporting date of deferred acquisition costs is £310m (2014: £293m), further
details of which are disclosed in accounting policy Vi(e) and note 17.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to various financial risks through the inherent uncertainty in undertaking insurance
business affecting its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. The
most important components of these risks are: market risk (including interest rate risk, equity price risk
and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group forms part of the AXA UK Group which has an established risk management framework on
how each risk profile is identified, measured, monitored and controlled through Risk Committees advising
the individual business unit Chief Executives. A dedicated risk management function supports the
individual business units by ensuring that a full understanding and control of risks is incorporated into
management decision making and procedures.

Financial risks are considered from both a shareholder and a policyholder liability perspective with the
adoption of the appropriate risk policies to cover different situations, such as insurance contracts, where
the principal technique is to match assets to liabilities, non-investment credit risk and liquidity risk.

The notes to follow address the individual components of financial risk, capital management employed
and insurance risks associated with underwriting, pricing and reserving.

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that movements in market factors, such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates and the market valuation of equities, bonds and property adversely impact the value of, or
income from, the financial assets. Also, to the extent that claims mflatlon is correlated to interest rates,
liabilities to policyholders are exposed to interest rate risk.

For an insurance company, market risk appetite is required to optimise investment performance while
reflecting the aim of retaining prudent margins to avoid insolvency. In order to control market risk, assets
are chosen where relevant to match a range of underlying liability characteristics such as their mean
duration, inflation and currency factors. In addition, an investment risk appetite framework is in place to
monitor and control exposure to the different types of market risk within the appropriate investment risk
budgets.

The AXA UK Investment Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the strategic asset
allocation in respect of the invested assets of AXA UK group companies. Investment guidelines detail the
constraints to which the invested assets must be managed by the fund managers. The strategic asset
allocation takes into account the interaction between assets and liabilities. Regular risk monitoring and
reporting is in place to mitigate the potential adverse impact of market risks on the invested assets. A
concentration risk framework is in place to manage the counterparty risk exposure.

Derivative contracts are used for the purposes of efficient portfolio management and / or the reduction of
market risk. For example, interest rate swaps are used for the purpose of managing interest rate risk and
cross currency swaps and currency forward contracts are used for the purpose of managing currency risk.

Hedge accounting has been applied using two types of fair value hedge, a macro hedge (portfolio basis)

and a micro hedge (individual basis), as part of its risk management strategy to reduce the Group’s
exposure to interest rate fluctuations of designated fixed income securities.
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a) Industry analysis

The concentration of equity securities, including mutual funds, by industry is analysed as follows:

2015 2014
Equity analysis by industry £m % £m %
Financial 96 11.7% 86 10.5%
Consumer 76 9.2% 73 8.9%
Energy 23 2.8% 25 3.1%
Manufacturing & Pharmaceuticals 25 3.0% 19 2.3%
Utilities 3 3.8% 30 3.7%
Basic materials 9 1.1% 11 1.3%
Technology & Telecommunications 34 4.1% 30 3.7%
Others 530 64.3% 545 66.5%
Total 824 100.0% 819 100.0%

The concentration of debt securities by industry is analysed as follows:

2015 2014
Debt securities analysis by industry £m % £m %
Financial 1,254 26.8% 1,420 30.4%
Consumer 621 13.2% 592 12.7%
Energy 224 4.8% 191 41%
Manufacturing & Pharmaceuticals 250 5.3% 224 4.8%
Utilities 432 9.2% 412 8.8%
Basic materials’ 14 3.1% 162 3.5%
Technology & Telecommunications 403 8.6% 362 1.7%
Gowemment securities ' 1,227 26.2% 1,276 21.3%
Others 133 - 2.8% 37 0.8%
Total 4,688 100.0% 4,676 100.0%

b) Interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates at the
reporting date. An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates (excluding derivatives) would result in
reduced profit for the period of £25.0m (2014: £27.4m decreased profit) plus unrealised losses in the
consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income of £183.4m (2014: £177.7m). A decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates (excluding derivatives) would result in increased profit for the period of

£27.0m (2014: £29.5m) plus unrealised gains in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive.....

-+ e ——- —|ncome of £210:6m~(2014:£196:9m).” ~ T 7

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would increase in the fair value of derivatives through
income by £37.9m (2014: £36.9m). A decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates would decrease
the fair value of derivatives through income by £39.5m (2014: £36.9m).

The fair 'value of debt securities is exposed to future interest rate fluctuations. Included in debt
securities of £4,688m (2014: £4,676m) is £136m (2014: £386m) in respect of variable rate
debentures and £601m (2014: £527m) in respect of index and inflation linked debentures. Debt
securities with fixed interest rate are exposed to fair value interest rate risk but not cash flow interest
rate risk. Ignoring the credit risk, debt securities with variable interest rates are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk but not fair value interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk is not significant on cash and cash equivalents balances.
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c)

d)

Equity price risk

Listed equity securities represent 32% (2014: 33%) of total equity investments, including mutual
funds.

if equity valuations had increased by 10%, with all other variables constant, the operating result for
the year would remain unchanged (2014: unchanged). Unrealised gains recorded through the
consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income would increase by £26.2m (2014: £26.7m).

If equity valuations had decreased by 10%, with all other variables constant, the operating result for
the year would decrease by £5.2m (2014: £7.7m). Unrealised gains recorded through the
consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income would decrease by £21.0m (2014: £19.1m).

An increase of 10% in the relevant market indices would decrease the fair value of equity hedging
derivatives through income by £2.2m (2014: £2.4m). A decrease of 10% in the relevant market
indices would increase the fair value of equity hedging derivatives through income by £5.1m
(2014: £6.4m).

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk in respect of portfolios denominated in other currencies,
principally the US dollar and Euro. Mitigation of this risk is partly achieved by matching the liabilities
with assets in the same currency and the use of derivative financial instruments. The Euro
investments shown in the tables below principally relate to financial assets held by the Group’s
subsidiary undertaking in Ireland. At 31 December 2015, if the pound had weakened/strengthened
by 1%, with all other variables constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been £1.0m
(2014: £1.5m) lower/higher.

The concentration of financial assets by currency is analysed as follows:

CAD EURO GBP JPY usb Others Total

2015 £m % £m % £m % £m % £m % £m % £m %
Fair value through profit and
loss
Derivative financial instruments - - 13 1.5% 12 04% - - 7 04% - - 32 0.5%
Debt securities - - 3 0.3% - - - - - - - 3 0.1%
Mutual funds - - 13 1.4% 51 1.6% - - 464 27.6% - - 528 9.0%
Available for sale financial
assets
Equity instruments 1 4.0% 94 10.6% 119 3.6% 3 100.0% 21 1.3% 4 834% 242 4.1%
Debt securities 21 96.0% 714 79.9% 2,882 88.4% - 1,068 63.5% 1 166% 4,685 79.9%
Mutual funds - - 3 0.3% 51 1.6% - - - - - - 54  0.9%
Derivative instruments held
for hedging - - 1 0.1% 1 - - 2 01% - - 5 01%
Loans - 53 5.9% 143 4.4% - 120 7.1% - 316 5.4%

22 100.0% 894 100.0% 3,259 100.0% 3 100.0% 1,682 100.0% 5 100.0% 5,865  100.0%

The concentration of financial assets by currency is analysed as follows:
CAD EURO GBP JPY usD Others Total

2014 £m % £m % £m % £m % £m % £m % £m %
Fair value through profit and
loss
Derivative financial instruments - - 28 2.8% 25 0.7% 2 49.8% 3 03% - - 58 1.0%
Mutual funds - - 41 4.3% 55 1.6% - - 424 31.2% - - 520 8.8%
Available for sale financial .
assets
Equity instruments 1 101% % 9.%% 123 35% 2 50.2% 21 1.6% 4 100.0% 247 A%
Debt securities 9 89.% 770 794% 3100 87.7% - 797 58.6% - - 4676 79.5%
Mutual funds - - 4 0.4% 448  1.4% - - - - 52 0%
Derivative instruments held : ) .
for hedging - - - 0.0% 1- 0.0% - - - 0.0% - - 1 00%
Loans - K]l 3.2% 184 52% - 114  8.4% - 329 56%

10 100.0% 970 100.0% 3,536 100.0% 4 100.0% 1,359 100.0% 4 1000% 5883  100.0%
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The exposure of the Group to currency risk on other financial assets and liabilities is not significant.

Credit risk

Credit risk can be defined as the risk of capital or income loss resulting from counterparty default or issuer
credit downgrades affecting financial assets.

For investment related items credit risk is actively accepted in anticipation of the potential returns to be
made but within closely controlled limits set and monitored as part of the concentration risk framework and
the investment risk appetite framework. The purpose of the concentration risk framework is to limit the
exposure to an individual counterparty.

Non-investment items which generate credit risk generally arise as a by-product of the Group’s insurance
operations, such as premium debts from policyholders and intermediaries, reinsurance balances and other
operational debts. Exposure is controlled via different processes including the active monitoring of
premium debt.

The source of the credit rating where available is Bloomberg composite rating, representing the averages
of the Moody'’s, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch credit ratings.

Credit risk assets by economic exposure are analysed below; the spread is managed to ensure that there
is no significant concentration of credit risk:

Credit risk profile

2015 2014
Ratings £m % £m %
AAA 320 4.1% 245 3.0%
AA 1,323 17.0% 1,331 16.3%
A 1,581 20.3% 1,710 21.0%
BBB 2,090 26.8% 1,765 21.7%
BB 35 0.4% 70 0.9%
B 1 0.0% 1 0.0%
Not rated 2,443 31.4% 2,449 37.1%
Total 7,793 100.0% 7,571 100.0%

The maximum exposure for the Group's assets bearing credit risk is summarised below:

2015 2014
(i:arrying (carrying
value) value)
Maximum credit risk £m £m
Investment in financial assets - debt securities (note 19) 4,688 4,676
Investment in financial assets - loans (note 19) 316 329
Investment in financial assets- denivatives (note 19) 37 59
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract liabilities (note 20) 166 179
Insurance and reinsurance receivables (note 21) 1,380 1,208
Other receivables (note 22) 110 118
Other receivables from related parties (note 22) 489 453
Cash and cash equivalents (note 23) 607 549
7,793 7,571
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The age analysis of insurance and reinsurance receivables is presented as follows:

Overdue
Not past less Overdue overdue Carrying
due or than 6 6-12 over1 Provided value
inpaired months months year for £m
2015
Direct and reinsurance inwards
insurance receivables 1,326 32 3 - (11) 1,350
Reinsurance receivables
(ceded only) . 19 3 3 6 (1) 30
2014
Direct and reinsurance inwards
insurance receivables 1,153 29 4 2 (13) 1,175
Reinsurance receivables
_(ceded only) 3 7 10 15 (2) 33

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group, irrespective of solvency and profitability, may not have
sufficient available cash (or near cash assets or funding facilities) to pay obligations when they fall due at
reasonable cost.

Liquidity risk could arise from illiquid asset holdings, inappropriate asset/liability matching or inexact
forecast operating liquidity requirements resulting in insufficient short-term (including intra-day) and
longer-term liquidity. This is controlled via regular liquidity risk monitoring and reporting in addition to
regular short-term cash flow forecasting. A robust capital management framework is in place to ensure
there are appropriate loan and overdraft facilities in place.

The table below analyses the maturity of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date.

The table indicates that liabilities due within one year exceed financial assets maturing within one year.
However, the majority of financial assets, which have a contractual maturity date of more than one year,
are traded on active markets and could be readily liquidated if necessary. In addition a positive cash flow
is expected to be generated from operations for the foreseeable future.

Less than 1-2 35 Over5

1year years years years  Equities Total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Equities and mutual funds 824 824
Debt securities 435 3 1,266 2,676 4,688
Loans/bonds with related parties 1 106 51 158 316
Other receivables 620 620
Cash and cash equivalents : 607 - - - - 607
Total non-derivative financial assets 1,663 417 1,317 2,834 824 7,085
Derivative financial instruments 10 - 4 23 - 37
Total financial assets 1,673 417 1,321 2,857 824 . 7,092
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Lessthan 15 Ower5
1year years years Total
2015 m m m m
Finandal liabilities
Qans autstanding (note 26) 1,378 1,718 1,515 4,611
Cirect insurance operatians (nate 27) 26 - - 296
Reinsurance operadtions (note 27) <] - - 4L
Other lighlities (ncte 30) 45 - - 425
Insurance liabilities 214 1,718 1,515 5375
Listed unsaecured 6 5/8% Conrpany bonds repayable 2023 - - 149 149
Bark oerdraft 5 - - 5
Total barrowings (note 28) 5 - 149 14
Derivetive firandid instrurerts (ncte 19) 4 5 2 7
Total finandial liahilities 2191 1,723 1,602 5606
Lessthan 12 35 Ower5
1year years years years  [Exuities Total
014 n fm in m m £m
Financial assets
Equities and mutudl funds - - - - 819 819
Dett secuities 24 487 1,249 2646 - 4,676
Loans/bands with related parties 14 X PA) x3 - 30
Cther receivebles 508 - 8 - - 51
Cash and cash equivdents 59 - - - - 59
Total nonderivative financial assets 1,365 56 . 135 2909 819 6,964
Denivetive firendd instrurents 23 - 1 35 - <)
Total financial assets 1,388 516 1,356 294 819 7,023
Less than 1-5 Over 5
1year years years Total
2014 m m m m
Financial liabilities
Qlaims outstanding (note 26) 1,338 1,689 1,747 4774
Direct insurance operations (note 27) 316 - - 316
Reinsurance operations (note 27) 80 - - 80
Cher liabilities (note 30) 265 - - 265
Insurance liabilities 1,999 1,689 1,747 5,435
Listed unsecured 6 58% Company bonds repayable 2023 - - 149 149
Bank owerdraft 13 - - 13
Total borrowings (note 28) 13 - 149 162
Derivetive financial instruments (note 19) 37 10 46 B
Total financial liabilities 2,049 1,699 1,942 5,690

Capital management

The Group’s UK and Irish insurance operations are regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA"),
Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA”) and The Central Bank of Ireland respectively and are subject to
insurance solvency regulations which specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held in
addition to the insurance liabilities. The Group manages capital in accordance with these rules and has
embedded in its processes the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such

regulations.
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Given the variability of the many inflows and outflows which are subject to price and other combinations of
risk, regular monitoring of liability and asset profiles is undertaken to establish the implications for
supporting capital requirements.

The individual insurance companies are subject to capital adequacy requirements (which are based on EU
Directive requirements). At 31 December 2015 the total capital available to meet the UK Insurance
Group’s adjusted solo basis Solvency | requirement is £1,151m (2014: £1,138m) which exceeds the
General Insurance Capital Requirement by £574m (2014: £592m). For Ireland the total regulatory assets
available to cover the minimum solvency margin under Solvency | are €258m (2014: €314m) which
exceed the required solvency margin by €169m (2014: €239m).

For the UK, the AXA Insurance UK plc Group is also subject to self-assessed risk-based capital
requirements under the PRA’s individual capital adequacy regime and carries out an Individual Capital
Assessment (“ICA”) on a regular basis. This risk-based capital assessment takes into account all the risks
within the Group and determines the appropriate level of capital required to cover these risks under
extreme conditions. An ICA report is sent to the PRA on a regular basis. The Group has complied with all
regulatory capital requirements throughout the year.

Fair value estimation

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method;
grouped into the levels described below based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

Financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value in the fair value measurement hierarchy at
31 December 2015.

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Description £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss . 563 10 543 10
Derivative financial instruments 32 10 22 -
Debt securities 3 - 3 -
Mutual funds 528 - 518 10
Available for sale financial assets 4,981 3,565 1,391 25
Equity instruments 242 227 13 2
Debt securities 4,685 3,338 1,347 -
Mutual funds . 54 - 31 23
Derivative financial instruments for hedging 5 - 5 -
Total financial asets 5,549 3,575 1,939 35
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 77 43 34 -
Derivative financial instruments 68 43 25 -
Derivative financial instruments for hedging 9 - 9 -
Total financial liabilities 77 43 34 -

Investments recognised at amortised cost in the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2015.

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Description £m £m £m £m
Investments at amortised cost
Investment property 168 - 168 -
Total 168 - 168 -
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Financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value in the fair value measurement hierarchy at
31 December 2014.

Fair value measurement based on:

2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Description £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through income 578 12 566 -
Derivative financial instruments 58 12 46 -
Mutual funds 520 - 520 -
Available for sale financial assets 4,975 3,760 1,191 24
Equity investments 247 227 20 -
Debt securities 4,676 3,533 1,143 -
Mutual funds 52 - 28 24
Derivative financial instruments for hedging 1 . 1 .
Total financial assets 5,554 3,772 1,758 24
Financial liabilities at fair value through
income 92 24 68 -
Derivative financial instruments 53 24 29 -
Derivative financial instruments for hedging 39 - 39 -
Total financial liabilities 92 24 68 -

Investments recognised at amortised cost in the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2014.

2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Description . £m £m £m £m
Investments at amortised cost
Investment property 153 - 153 -
Total 153 - 153 -

£229.3m of debt securities were transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 during the year and £164.0m of debt
securities were transferred from Level 2 to Leve! 1. £0.3m of derivative assets and £0.7m of derivative
liabilities were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 during the year. Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
occur primarily due to changes in the availability of pricing information.

a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date, as described in the ‘financial assets’ accounting policy X. These instruments comprise
primarily FTSE listed equity investments, government debt securities and corporate debt securities which
meet the Level 1 criterion.

b) Financial instruments in level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined by using
recognised valuation techniques, as listed in accounting policy X(e) ‘fair value estimation’. The inputs to

the valuation techniques are largely derived from observable market data; and if all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

c) Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. The investment included within Level 3 is the AXA Trireme private equity fund, the

investment has no equivalent market activity and is valued based on the various valuations of the assets
held within the fund.

The impact of a deterioration in the underlying exposures of 20%, would result in a decrease in the fair
value of the asset and other comprehensive income of £4.4m.

Other financial instrument’s carrying values do not differ significantly from their fair value.
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The following table presents the changes to Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015

Available for sale
Equity Mutual

2015 securities funds Total
Description , fm £m fm
Qpening bdance - 24 24
Totd gains or losses

in other cormprehensive income ' . - -
Purchases - 2 2
Settlements - 3 3
Transfered into level 3 2 10 12
Transferred out of level 3 - - -
Qosing balance 2 3 35

The following table presents the changes to Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2014

Available for sale

Mutual

2014 funds Total
Description £m £m
Opening balance 25 25

Total gains or losses

in other comprehensive income - -

Purchases 7 7

Settlements (6) (6)
Income (2) (2)
Transferred into/out of level 3 - -

24 24

Closing balance

Transfers into and out of level 3, are as a result of changes in valuation techniques.

Insurance and reinsurance risk

The Group’s insurance risk policy outlines its objectives in carrying out insurance business, its appetite for
insurance risk and its policies for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling insurance risk.
Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk and is monitored through the AXA UK Insurance Risk
Committee. This includes the effectiveness of the reinsurance programme in reducing the gross provisions
whilst considering the non-investment credit risks associated with reinsurance balances.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, the risk is

unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are unpredictable and the
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the level established

using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its
insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected

outcome.
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Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of
risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

The concentration of insurance risk by geographical area is disclosed in segment assets and liabilities
(note 1). The UK Property & Casualty segment includes direct commercial employee liability claims
outstanding of £956m (2014: £992m) and other liability claims outstanding of £247m (2014: £238m) within
the total Insurance liabilities of £5,707m (2014: £5,537m).

Short term insurance liabilities are not directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates, as they are
undiscounted and contractually non-interest bearing. However, due to the time value of money and the
impact of interest rates on the level of bodily injury and asbestos-related claims incurred by the Group’s
insurance contract holders (where reduction of interest rates would normally produce a higher insurance
liability), the Group matches the cash flows of assets and liabilities in this portfolio by estimating their
mean duration.

Asbestos claims reserves are highly sensitive to the assumptions used in the projection methodology. In
particular, the inflation rate adopted impacts significantly on the final reserves and timing of future cash
flows. The other main sensitivities are around peak year, which could shift the timing of future notifications
between years and the ultimate dismissal rate. Changes in the average cost of claims settlements used

will also feed directly through to the ultimate liability figure.
General insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivity
a) Process used to decide on assumptions

In addition to controlling upstream risks and analysing the reinsurance strategy the Group specifically
monitors reserve risks.

Reserves have to be booked for claims as they are reported. These reserves are measured
individually for each file by the claims departments. Additional reserves for incurred but not reported
(IBNR) claims, along with reserves for not enough reported (IBNER - incurred but not enough
reported) are also booked. Various statistical and actuarial methods are used in these calculations.
Calculations are initially carried out locally by the technical departments, and are then reviewed by
local risk management teams.

The Group has an annual review programme to ensure the validity and coherence of the models
used is in accordance with actuarial principles and accounting rules in force.

The Group’s methods are based on internal and industry best practice.
Actuaries in charge of assessing reserves for claims payable do not use a single method but a

selection of approaches such as:

 Methods based on the development of claims (paid or incurred) using triangulation methods (e.g.
chain ladder and link ratio) for which past experience is applied to each loss occurrence or
underwriting year, in order to make reserve projections until their estimated final development.

« The average cost per claim method which applies an estimated average cost to the final number
of claims expected to be notified in each loss occurrence or underwriting year.

o Methods based on claims ratios (such as the ultimate claims ratio or the additional claims ratio).
o Hybrid methods (such as Bornhuetter-Ferguson and Cape Cod).

o For asbestos-related diseases (mesothelioma claims), models released by The Health and Safety
Executive and an Actuarial Working Party as well as high level projections available from
Professor Sir Richard Peto, an epidemiology expert.

o Methods based on frequency and severity estimates.

o Claims which are reserved on an annuity certain approach over the period of expected payments
for each individual claim, are subject to discounting.
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b)

The analysis is segmented differently depending on product type, geographical location, distribution
channel, regulation and other factors in order to obtain a homogeneous claims base and ensure an
appropriate analysis of reserves.

Assumptions depend on available data relating to reported losses at the time of the estimates, as well
as regulations, claims management procedures, pricing, underwriting information and the type of
activities and claims (coverage type, attritional or major claims, recent or old occurrence). They also
depend on economic, social and environmental factors, as well as on the legislative and political
context, which are important variables in terms of reserves. Assumptions are made following
discussions with claims managers, pricing actuaries, underwriters and other specialised departments.
These discussions lead to the definition of reasonable estimate ranges.

However, it must be kept in mind that estimates are based mainly on assumptions that may prove
different from subsequent experience, particularly in the event of changes in the economic
environment (e.g. a rise in inflation), in the legal environment (case law) and in the social environment
(class action suits), and especially if they affect the Group’s main portfolios simultaneously.

Change in assumptions

No significant changes to assumptions were made in 2015 for the estimation of general insurance
claims other than for claims settled by means of periodical payment orders as disclosed in note 26.
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Segmental information - Business segments

The Group is organised into four operating segments: Healthcare, UK Property & Casualty, Republic of
Ireland Property & Casualty and Other Group activities. Each segment incorporates a related proportion
of returns from investments.

The activities of these differing operating segments are detailed below:

Healthcare

The principal activities comprise the offering of private medical to both individuals and businesses, both in
the UK and internationally, and occupational health services.

UK Property & Casualty

The principal activities comprise the offering of general insurance products to individuals and businesses
through direct, corporate partners and intermediaries channels.

Republic of Ireland Property & Casualty (“ROI”)
The principal activities comprise the offering of general insurance products, primarily car insurance.
Other Group activities

Other activities comprise the applicable results of service companies, international property & casualty
agencies, central functions and any elimination adjustments.

Basis of Measurement

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those for the Group as a whole. Any
transactions between reportable segments are on normal commercial terms, and are included within the
reported segments.

The Group assesses performance of and allocates resources to each of the operating segments on the

basis of operating profit before tax attributable to equity holders of the company, with no subsequent
adjustments.
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The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Property Property
& Casualty & Casualty
Healthcare UK Rof Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m
Insurance revenue
Insurance premium revenue 1,292 2,119 371 - 3,782
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (22) (118) (14) - (154)
Net insurance revenue 1,270 2,001 357 - 3,628
Other income
Investment income 27 173 27 - 227
Net realised gains and losses relating to
investments at cost and at fair value
through shareholders equity . 5 20 11 - 36
Net realised gains and losses and change in
fair value of investments at fair value
through profit and loss (10) (88) 9) - (107)
Change in investment impairments 1 (19) 2) - (20)
Other operating income (11) 133 7 127 256
Total income 1,282 2,220 391 127 4,020
Policyholders claims and benefits
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses (934) (1,347) (279) - (2,560)
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses recowerable from reinsurers 13 19 3 - 35
Other expenses
Insurance contract acquisition expenses (155) (500) (62) - 717)
Marketing and administration expenses (128) (195) (31) ) (355)
Cost of asset management senvices 2 9) 3) 1) (15)
Other operating expenses - (10) (1) (124) (135)
Operating result 76 178 18 1 273
Underwriting result (footnote1) 55 101 6) 2 152
Net investment result (footnote 2) 21 77 24 1) 121
Operating result 76 178 18 1 273
Finance costs - - - (10) (10)
Profit/(loss) before tax 76 178 18 (9) 263
Income tax expense : (17) (41) (2) 2 (58)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company 59 137 16 (7) 205
Other segment items included in the income statement:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5 9 2 - 16

Notes to tables

1. Underwriting result comprises: net insurance revenues, other operating income and other operating expenses, policyholder
claims and benefits, insurance contract acquisition expenses, and marketing and administration expenses; excluding exchange

gains and losses, and non-insurance related income and expenses.

2. Netinvestment result comprises: investment income, net realised gains on available for sale financial asset investments, net
fair value gains and losses on assets at fair value through income and expenses, and cost of asset management services;
including exchange gains and losses, and non-insurance related income and expenses.
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The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Property Property
& Casualty & Casualty

Healthcare UK Rof | Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m

Insurance revenue
Insurance premium revenue 1,186 2,120 380 - 3,686
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (21) (115) (15) - (151)
Net insurance revenue 1,165 2,005 365 - 3,535

Other income
Investment income 28 189 34 - 251
Net realised gains and losses relating to
investments at cost and at fair value
through shareholders equity 4 26 9 - 39
Net realised gains and losses and change in
fair value of investments at fair value

through profit and loss (12) @) (26) - (45)
Change in investment impairments ’ 1 (36) @) - (36)
Other operating income (9 74 23 101 189

Total income 1,177 2,251 404 101 3,933

Policyholders claims and benefits
Insurance claims and loss adjustment

‘expenses (854) (1,405) (244) - (2,503)
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses recoverable from reinsurers 13 12 4 - 29

Other expenses

Insurance contract acquisition expenses (145) (631) (76) - (752)
Marketing and administration expenses (136) (184) (27) 1) (348)
Cost of asset management senvices 2) ()] 3) 1) (15)
Other operating expenses - (11) - 97) (108)
Operating result 53 123 58 2 236
Underwriting result (footnote1) 34 (40) 45 3 42
Net investment result (footnote 2) 19 163 13 1) 194
Operating result 53 123 58 2 236
Finance costs i - - - (10) (10)
Profit/(loss) before tax 53 123 58 (8) 226
Income tax expense (15) (25) 7) 2 (45)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company 38 98 51 6) 181
Other segment items included in the income statement:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8 14 2 - 24

Notes to tables

1. Underwriting result comprises: net insurance revenues, other operating income and other operating expenses, policyholder
claims and benefits, insurance contract acquisition expenses, and marketing and administration expenses; excluding exchange
gains and losses, and non-insurance related income and expenses.

2. Net investment result comprises: investment income, net realised gains on available for sale financial asset investments, net
fair value gains and losses on assets at fair value through income and expenses, and cost of asset management services;
including exchange gains and losses, and non-insurance related income and expenses.
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The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
are as follows:

Property Property
& Casualty & Casualty

Healthcare UK Rofl Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m
Goodwill, intangible and

" deferred acquisition costs assets 269 416 32 - 717
Investments 646 4,454 904 - 6,004

Reinsurance share of insurance
contract liabilities 6 138 22 - 166
Property, plant and equipment 41 17 14 - 72
Deferred Taxation 6 127 : (9) 4 128
Receivables (134) (271) 83 2,322 2,000
cash and cash equivalents 110 297 25 175 607
Total assets 944 5,178 1,071 2,501 9,694
Insurance contract liabilities 735 4,136 836 - 5,707
Other liabilities 364 544 83 399 1,390
Total liabilities 1,099 4,680 919 399 7,097
Capital expenditure 63" 4 4 - 71

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2014 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
are as follows:

Property Property
& Casualty & Casualty

Healthcare UK Rof |l Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m
Goodwill, intangible and

deferred acquisition costs assets 229 425 28 - 682
Investments 690 4,357 967 - 6,014

Reinsurance share of insurance
contract liabilities 7 150 22 - 179
Property, plant and equipment 24 19 14 - 57
Deferred Taxation 6 138 O] 9 152
Receivables 190 (344) 57 1,896 1,799
cash and cash equivalents 113 327 20 89 549
Total assets 1,259 5,072 1,107 1,994 9,432
Insurance contract liabilities 650 4,073 814 - 5,637
Other liabilities 341 617 168 270 1,396
Total liabilities 991 4,690 982 270 6,933
Capital Expenditure 1 3 3 - 7
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2. Segmental information — Geographical segments

The Group’s business segments are managed as a single group operating in the following main
geographical areas:

2015 2014
Net insurance revenue £m £m
UK 3,271 3,170
Republic of Ireland 357 365
Total income from insurance contracts 3,628 3,535
2015 2014
Total assets £m £m
UK 8,501 8,196
Republic of Ireland i 1,193 1,236
Total assets ) 9,694 9,432
2015 2014
Capital expenditure £m £m
UK 67 4
Republic of Ireland 4 3
Total capital expenditure 71 7
3. Net premium revenue
2015 2014
£m £m
Short-term insurance contracts
- premium receivables 3,932 3,681
- change in unearned premium provision (150) 5
Premium revenue arising from contracts issued 3,782 3,686
Short-term reinsurance contracts
- premium payables (144) (154)
- change in unearned premium provision (10) 3
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers on insurance
contracts issued (154) (151)
Net premium revenue 3,628 3,535
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Investment income

December 2015
Net realised gains
and losses relating Net realised gains
to investmentsat  and losses and

cost and at fair change in fair value
Net value through of other investments Change in
investment shareholders’ at fair value through investments

£m income equity profitand loss - impairment Totai
Investment in real estate property at amortised cost 9 - - 8 17
Debt instruments - available for sale 165 17 - - 182
Debt instruments — available for sale in hedging relationship 5 (28) (23)
Equity instruments ~ awailable for sale 9 19 - - 28
Non-consolidated investment funds 20 (16) - 4

Non-consolidated investment funds available for sale 7 - (10) - (3

Non-consolidated investment funds designated as at fair

value through profit or loss 13 - (6) - 7
Loans at cost 14 - - - 14
Derivative instruments 5 - (96) - (91)
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - - - 2
Other 3 - - - 3
TOTAL INCOME 227 36 (107) (20) 136
Investment management expenses (15) - - - (15)
Finance costs (note 10) (10) - - - (10)
NET INVESTMENT RESULT 202 36 (107) (20) 111

Notes to table:
1) Write back of impairment following investment sales are included in the net realised capital gains or losses on investments.

December 2014
Net realised gains
and losses relating Netrealised gains
to investmentsat  and losses and
cost and at fair change in fair value

Net value through of other investments Change in
investment shareholders’ at fair value through investments
fm income equity profit and loss impairment Total
Investment in real estate property at amortised cost 6 - - 7 13
Debt instruments - available for sale 191 24 - - 215
Debt instruments - available for sale in hedging relationship - - 42 - 42
Equity instruments - awailable for sale 10 13 - (43) (20)
Non-consolidated investment funds 17 1 23 . 4
Non-consolidated investment funds available for sale 4 1 - - 5
Non-consolidated investment funds designated as af fair
value through profit or loss 13 - 23 - 36
Loans at cost 18 1 - - 19
Derivative instruments 7 - (110) - (103)
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - - 1
Other 1 - - - 1
TOTAL INCOME 251 39 (45) (36) 209
Investment management expenses (15) - - . (15)
Finance costs (note 10) (10) - - - (10)
NET INVESTMENT RESULT 226 39 (45) (36) 184

Notes to table: -
1) Write back of impairment following investment sales are included in the net realised capital gains or losses on investments.
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2015 2014
£m £m
Other income from non-insurance business 58 55
Foreign exchange gains 72 36
Recharge of expenses to immediate parent company 89 48
Recharge of expenses to fellow subsidiary undertakings 37 50
Other operating income 256 189
Other operating expenses
2015 2014
£m £m
Other expenses from non-insurance business 9 10
Expenses incurred by Senice Company recharged 126 98
Other operating expenses 135 108
Policyholder claims and benefits
2015 2014
£m £m
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses:
Gross claims paid 2,416 2,356
Gross changes in insurance contract liabilities for claims 143 145
Change in unexpired risks provision 1 2
2,560 2,503
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recowerable:
Reinsurers' share of.
Claims paid (37) (33)
Change in insurance contract liabilities for claims 2 4
(35) (29)
Net policyholder claims and benefits 2,525 2,474

Policyholder claims and benefits are stated after the impact of associated fair value movements on

derivative instruments of £2.5m (2014: £(1.5m).
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Other expenses by destination

2015 2014
£m £m
Movement in advanced commission payments (note 16) 7 5
Mowvement in deferred acquisition costs (note 17) {(17) 3)
Costs incurred for the acquisition of insurance contracts
expensed in the year 734 . 749
Attributable to reinsurers (7) 1
Total expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 717 752
2015 2014
£m £m
Marketing and administrative expenses 339 324
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 9
Amortisation of software development costs 7 12
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 3
Total marketing and administrative expenses 355 348

The operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year were £8m (2014: £15m).

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company's auditor and the costs
incurred are as detailed below:

2015 2014
£000 £000
Audit services:
- Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of
the statutory accounts 70 59
- Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of
its subsidiaries 953 930
Non-audit senvices:
Audit related assurance senvices, including the audit of the
regulatory return 215 90
1,238 1,079

Non-audit services principally include fees relating to group and regulatory reporting, and other services
pursuant to the review of internal financial controls.
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2015 2014
Number Number
Monthly average number of employees in the year were:
- Healthcare 3,412 2,974
- Property & Casualty UK 4,454 4,332
- Property & Casualty R of | 1,075 1,054
8,941 8,360
2015 2014
£m £m
Wages and salaries 312 299
Social security costs 36 34
Pension costs - defined contribution plans (note 32) 37 34
Pension costs - defined benefit plans (note 32) 27 76
412 443
10. Finance costs
2015 2014
£m £m
Interest expense:
- unsecured company bonds 10 10
Finance costs 10 10
11. Income tax expense
2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax
Current tax on losses for the year 9 27
Adjustments in respect of previous years - 5
Total current tax 9 32
Deferred tax (note 31)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 50 14
Adjustments to deferred tax assets arising in previous periods (1) (1)
Total deferred tax 49 13
Income tax charge 58 45
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Tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2015 2014

‘ £m £m

Profit before tax 263 226

Tax at the UK rate of 20.25% (2014: 21.5%) 53 48

Effects of:

- tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits

in the respective countries 1) 3)

- income not subject to tax & expenses not tax deductible - 2)

- impact of the change in UK tax rate 7 (2)

- adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (1) 4

Tax charge for the period 58 45

As the Group has overseas subsidiaries it is subject to income taxes in different tax'jurisdictions. Taxation
for these is calculated at the rates prevailing in those jurisdictions.

The standard rate of tax applied to reported profit on ordinary is 20.25% (2014: 21.5%). During 2015 the
deferred tax balances were re-measured as a result of the changes to the UK corporation tax rate that
were enacted in Finance (No.2) Act 2015. The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 20% to 19% with
effect from 1 April 2017 and will be further reduced from 19% to 18% with effect from 1 April 2020. The
impact included in the tax charge for the year is a charge of £7m (2014: credit of £2m).

The tax charge relating to components of Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:

2015 2014
Before Tax Before Tax
tax charge After tax tax credit After tax
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on
defined benefit schemes 33 4) 29 (87) 11 (76)
Fair value movements on available
for sale financial assets 151 28 179 32 6) 26
Exchange losses on revaluation of
subsidiary net assets (13) - (13) - - -
Fair value on loss on hedge )
accounting derivatives (4) 1 (3) - - -
Other comprehensive income 167 25 192 (55) 5 (50)
Current tax charge 25 5

Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2015 2014
Profit attributable to the Company's equity holders (£m) 205 181
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (£'000) 1,059,786 1,059,786
Basic earnings per share (pence per share) 19.33 17.08
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Diluted

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares and so diluted earnings per share does not differ
from the basic earnings per share.

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
£168m).

Property, plant and equipment

Land and Motor Plant and
buildings vehicles Equipment Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2015 76 3 41 120
Additions at cost 5 2 2 9
Acquisitions (note 38) 13 - 1 14
Disposals ' - ) @) 2
Exchange and other movements ) - - @)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 93 4 43 140
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2015 38 - 25 63
Charge for the year 2 - 4 6
Disposals - - 1 1)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 40 - 28 68
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 53 4 15 72

Land and Motor Plant and

buildings vehicles BEquipment Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2014 76 2 39 117
Additions at cost 1 1 2 4
Exchange and other movements (1) - - 1)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 76 3 41 120
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2014 33 - 21 54
Charge for the year 5 - 4 9
Balance as at 31 December 2014 38 - 25 63
Net book value as at 31 December 2014 38 3 16 57

Depreciation expense of £6m (2014: £9m) has been charged to marketing and administration expenses.

The expected useful economic lives of: Land and buildings is the period of the lease to a maximum of 50
years; Motor vehicles are 5 years; and Equipment is 5 years.

The freehold properties were valued at £565m as at 31 December 2015 (2014: £56m) on a fair value basis

by Lambert Smith Hampton, who are independent chartered surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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15. Investment properties

16.

2015 2014
£m £m
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 192 192
Additions at cost 2 -
Balance as at 31 December 194 192
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 1 January 61 66
Impairment movement (9) (7)
Charge for the year 3 2
Balance as at 31 December 55 61
Net book value as at 31 December 139 131

The properties were valued at £168m (£153m at 31 December 2014) on a fair value basis by Lambert
Smith Hampton or by CB Richard Ellis, who are independent chartered surveyors, in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The rental income arising from investment properties amounted to £10m (2014: £9m), whilst the
associated operating expenses were £1m (2014: £1m). Both amounts, including the amortisation charge,
are recorded in the statement of profit or loss within investment income.

Goodwill and intangible assets
Software Advance Other
Goodwill Development Commission Intangibles Total

fm £m f£m £m £m
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2015 361 100 145 30 636
Additions at cost - 3 2 - 5
Acquisitions (note 38) 16 - - 14 30
Balance as at 31 December 2015 377 103 147 44 671
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 January 2015 - 89 137 21 247
Charge for the year - 7 7 3 17
Balance as at 31 December 2015 - 96 144 24 264
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 377 7 3 20 407
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Software Advance Other
Goodwill Development Commission Intangibles Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2014 61 97 145 0 633
Additions at cost - 3 - - 3
Balance as at 31 December 2014 361 100 145 30 636
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 January 2014 - 77 132 18 227
Charge for the year - 12 5 3 20
Balance as at 31 December 2014 - 89 137 21 247
Net book value as at 31 December 2014 361 1" 8 9 389

a) Goodwill relates to the acquisitions of the AXA PPP healthcare group plc, SecureHealth (Holdings)
Limited, ICAS International Holdings Limited, Health and Protection Solutions Limited (previously
Independent Sales Force Solutions Limited), Health On-line Company UK Limited, GBI Holdings,
SimplyHealth private medical business and The Permanent Health Company. The goodwill has been
allocated between the healthcare and direct business cash generating units, £179m and £198m,
respectively. The value-in-use was calculated through cash flow projections based on business plans
approved by management covering a three to five year period and a pre-tax risk adjusted discount
rate of 9.0% (direct business CGU) and 12.1% (healthcare CGU). Cash flows beyond that period
were extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate and terminal value. The key assumptions used in
the cash flow projections are the increases in premiums, claims and expenses. These assumptions
were determined based on historical rates.

Impairment testing of this valuation indicated that the carrying value is expected to be fully recoverable
and hence no impairment is considered necessary. In addition, no reasonably possible change in any
of the key assumptions would result in the goodwill being impaired.

b) Software development is all internally developed, with a useful life not exceeding five years. A
review was undertaken of the carrying value of capitalised assets relating to projects which were no -
longer being actively pursued and which would no longer support business generation. This resulted
in £0.9m of exceptional amortisation being charged within the year (2014: £3.8m).

c) Advance commissions represent separate payments to intermediaries, with useful lives ranging from
two to three years, in respect of future business.

d) Other intangibles arise mainly from the fair valuation of the assets acquired on acquisition fogether
with some new books of business acquired.

17. Deferred acquisition costs

2015 2014

£m £m

Deferred acquisition costs as at 1 January 293 291
Exchange and other movements ' (1) )
(Charge)/credit to income statement in the year: 18 -3
Acquisition costs deferred during the year 553 668
Amortisation charged during the year ' (535) (665)
Deferred acquisition costs as at 31 December 310 293
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18. Investments in subsidiaries
Particulars of principal subsidiary undertakings

Country of Holdings of

incorporation ordinary

or registration shares
Insurance companies ]
AXA Insurance UK plc England 100%
AXA PPP healthcare limited England 100%
AXA Insurance Limited Ireland 100%
Other companies
AXA Insurance plc England 100% (Parent)
AXA General Insurance Limited A England 100%
AXA Holdings Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited England 100% (Parent)
AXA Services Limited England 100% (Parent)
Health On-line Company UK Limited England 100%
ICAS International Holdings Limited England 100%
AXA PPP Healthcare administration Services Limited England 100%
Health and Protection Solutions Limited England 100%
The Permanent Health Company Limited England 100%

- AXA ICAS Occupational Health Services Limited England 100%
AXA Healthcare Management (Asia Regional Centre)
PTE Limited Singapore 100%
AXA PPP Administration Services Limited England 100%
AXA ICAS Limited England 100%
ICAS Orientacion Independiente S. L. Spain 100%
ICAS Employee and Organisation Enhancement Services
Southern Africa (PTY) Limited ' South Africa 80%
AXA UK Pension Trustees Limited England 100%
The Royal Exchange Assurance England 100%
AXA Pension Fund lIreland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Ireland Pension Trustees Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Assistance Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Group Services Limited Ireland 100%
Knight Law Limited England 100%
Swiftcover Insurance Services Limited England 100%
Ignition New Business Solutions Limited England 100%
GRE Nominee Shareholdings Limited England 100%
Notes:

1. The country of principal operation for each of the above companies is the country of incorporation.

2. All holdings of ordinary shares are held by a subsidiary unless stated parent.
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Investment in financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are summarised by measurement category in the table below:
2015 2014
£m £m
Available for sale 4,981 4,975
Fair value through income 563 578
- Held for trading: derivatives 32 58
- Designated: debt and other fixed income securities 3 -
- Designated: share and other variable yield securities 528 520
Derivatives in hedge relationships 5 1
Held to maturity - AXA UK plc 2017 5.75% bonds 91 100
Loans 225 229
Total financial assets 5,865 5,883
2015 2014
Available for sale financial assets £m £m
Shares and other variable yield securities - equity securities
- listed 240 245
- unlisted 2 2
Shares and other variable yield securities - mutual funds
- listed . 30 27
- unlisted 24 25
Debt securities
- listed 4,598 4,589
- unlisted 87 87
Total available for sale financial assets 4,981 4,975
2015 2014
Loans ' £m £m
Broker loans 8 9
Real estate and other private loans 217 220
Total loans 225 229

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Whilst only a small number of derivative instruments, namely interest rate swaps, qualifying for hedge
accounting, the primary objective for holding derivative instruments is to provide economic hedging of a
risk.

Economic hedging strategies include (i) managing interest rate exposures on fixed maturity investments,
(i) managing exchange rate risk on foreign-currency denominated investments and (iii) managing liquidity
positions in connection with asset-liability management and local regulatory requirements for insurance
operations.

In the narrative and tables below, both notional and fair value amounts are shown. The notional amount is
the most commonly used measure of volume in the derivatives market, however, it is not used as a
measure of risk because the notional amount greatly exceeds the possible credit market loss that could
arise from such transactions, as it does not represent the amounts actually exchanged by the parties. The
Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of its counterparties to the derivative instruments, but is not
exposed to credit risk on the entire notional amounts.

As of 31 December 2015, the notional amount of all derivative instruments totalled £9,407m (£7,667m at -
the end of 2014). Their net fair value as of 31 December 2015 totalled £(40)m (£(33)m at the end of 2014).
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Instruments designated for hedge accounting

During the year the Group has used two types of fair value hedge, a macro hedge (portfolio basis) and a
micro hedge (individual basis), as part of its risk management strategy to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations of fixed income securities.

The macro hedge represents a portfolio of fixed income securities with similar risk profiles, which are
hedged using a number of interest rate swaps and interest rate swap forwards. A portfolio hedge allows
the designation of the whole, or part, of a portfolio of assets with similar risk exposures. The hedged item
is designated based on interest rate sensitivities, taking into account the expected maturity, to match the
hedging derivative.

The micro hedge represents individual securities whose cash flow and risk profiles are matched to an
interest rate swap and, where applicable, an inflation rate swap, enabling the specific risks to be hedged.

The cash flow hedges effectively hedge the income stream from inflation linked UK treasury bonds over
the lifetime of the asset. There was no ineffectiveness recorded from the cash flow hedges during the
period. The movement in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income at the end of the
reporting period.

Further details of these derivative instruments are provided in the below table.

2015 2014
Contractual Contractual/
Derivative financial instruments / Nottonal Asset Liability Notiona! Asset Liability
Amount Amount
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Asset swaps - cash flow hedge 191 - (3) - - -
Interest Rate Swaps 990 5 (6) 1,073 1 (39)
Total 1,181 5 (9) 1,073 1 (39)
Gains/(losses) on fair value hedges 2015 2014
£m £m
Hedged items attributable to
. N 6 42
interest rate risk
Hedging instruments — macro (15) (43)
Hedging instruments — micro 2 (9)
() (10)

Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting

A number of derivative instruments either do not qualify for hedge accounting as set out by IAS 39
‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, or the Group has taken the decision not to adopt
hedge accounting in respect of these instruments.

Fair value through income derivative financial instruments are summarised by type in the table below:

2015 2014

Contractual Contractual/

I/ Notional Notional
Amount Asset Liability Amount Asset Liability
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Foreign Exchange Forwards 2,921 8 (41) 1,859 9 (22
Credit Default Swaps 339 2 (3) 347 1 2
Currency Swaps 144 1 (7) 152 1 -
Interest Rate Swaps 864 20 (14) 1,093 32 (14)
Options - - - 79 2 -
OTC Equities ) 1,301 - (2) 407 2 (3)
Swaptions 2,657 1 (1) 2,653 11 (h))
Futures - - - ) - -
Return swaps ' - - - 1 - (1)
Total 8,226 32 (68) 6,594 - 58 (53)
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20. Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
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2015 2014
£m £m
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurers' share of provision for claims outstanding and loss
adjustment expenses 112 115
Reinsurers' share of provision for uneamed premiums 54 64
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract liabilities 166 179

Reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses

Settlement period for reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding
and long-term insurance contract liabilities

Less than 12 months 22 22
Greater than 12 months 90 93
112 115
Reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses
2015 2014
£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 115 120
Reinsurers' share of claims payments made in year . (37) (33)
Increase in recoverables 35 29
Exchange and other movements (1) )
Balance as at 31 December 112 115
Reinsurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums
2015 2014
£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 64 61
Premiums written in the year 144 154
Premiums eamed in the year (154) (151)
Balance as at 31 December 54 64
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
2015 2014
£m £m
Direct and reinsurance inwards insurance receivables 1,350 1,175
Reinsurance receivables (ceded only) 30 33
Total insurance and reinsurance receivables due within
one year 1,380 1,208
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22. Other receivables

2015 2014

£m £m
Accrued interest 6 8
Prepayments and accrued income 15 12
Amounts due from ultimate parent company 4 4
Loans due from immediate parent company 314 318
Other amounts due from intermediate parent company 120 97
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings 51 34
Other receivables 110 118
Total other receivables 620 591
Expected to be recovered in less than one year 620 508
Expected to be recovered in more than one year - 83

In 2014 amounts expected in more than one year comprise of a three year term Euro 85m 1.21% fixed
rate loan and a three year term Euro 19m 1.21% fixed rate loan, maturing in 2016 between the Group and
an intermediate parent company, AXA UK plc.

No interest is charged on other intercompany loans.

23. Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 208 254
Short-term deposits 399 295
Cash and cash equivalents 607 549

The principal balance within the short-term deposits is a controlled sterling cash mutual fund investment,
which has an average maturity of 43 days (2014: 52 days). The fund invests in certificates of deposit,
commercial paper, bonds, floating rate note, derivatives and United Kingdom treasury bills.

Cash and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 607 549
Bank owerdrafts (note 28) (5) (13)
602 536

24. Ordinary share capital
2015 2014
Shares £m Shares £m
Issued and fully paid ordinary ,
shares of 5.25p each 1,059,785,981 56 1,059,785,981 56
2015 2014

Share premium account £m £m
Balance as at 31 December 523 523
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Other Reserves

Capital Capital
Capital redemption contribution Revaluation Translation

reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

2015 fm £m £m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 104 189 271 287 (3) 848
Fair value loss on available :

for sale financial assets .- - - (151) - (151)

Fair value loss on hedge

accounting derivatives - - - @) - (4)
Tax on mowements taken

directly to equity - deferred - - - - - -

- current - - - 29 - 29

Exchange on revaluation of :
subsidiary net assets - - - - (13) (13)
Balance as at 31 December 104 189 271 161 (16) 709

Capital Capital
Capital redemption contribution Revaluation Translation

reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 104 189 271 - 261 20 845
Fair value gains on available
for sale financial assets - - - 32 - 32
Tax on movements taken
directly to equity - defermed - - - (6) - (6)
- current - - A - - - -
Exchange on revaluation of
subsidiary net assets - - - - (23) (23)
Balance as at 31 December 104 189 271 287 (3) 848

The capital reserve represents share premium paid on ordinary shares of AXA Insurance plc (formerly,
Guardian Royal Exchange Assurance plc) and share premium paid on options exercised to subscribe for
ordinary shares under the employee share option scheme.

The capital redemption reserve is non-distributable and was created in 1998 on the redemption of B
shares.

The capital contributions were received in 2003 and 2013, from the immediate parent AXA UK pic.

The revaluation reserve represents the movement in the financial assets as disclosed in accounting policy
Xb.

The translation reserve represents exchange differences on the translation into Sterling of the results and
financial position of those entities whose functional currency is not Sterling.
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2015 2014
£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 287 261
Investments purchased in prior accounting periods
Transfer to income statement following sale (46) 40
Transfer to income statement following increase in impairment 17 (32)
Transfer to income statement following changes in premium/discount 24 13
Foreign exchange impact 3 -
Adjustments in current accounting period (127) - 94
Change in fair value of hedge accounting derivatives (4) -
Adjustments to investments purchased in the cumrent accounting period (22) (83)
Revaluation gains of available for sale financial assets 132 32
Tax 29 (6)
Balance as at 31 December 161 287
Insurance contract liabilities
2015 2014
£m £m
Provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses 3,917 3,891
Prowvision for unearned premiums 1,790 1,646
Total insurance contract liabilities 5,707 5,537
Settlement period for claims outstanding
Less than 12 months 1,378 1,338
Greater than 12 months 2,539 2,553
3,917 3,891
Provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses
2015 2014
£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 3,891 3,893
Total claims payments made in the year (2,416) (2,356)
Increase in liabilities 2,459 2,391
Exchange and other movements (17) (37)
Balance as at 31 December 3,917 3,891
Provision for unearned premiums
2015 2014
£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 1,646 1,659
Premiums written in the year 3,932 3,681
Premiums earned in the year (3,782) (3,686)
Exchange and other movements (6) 8)
Balance as at 31 December 1,790 1,646

66



Registered Number 01821312
Notes to the financial statements continued

Discounting

Outstanding claims provisions are based on undiscounted estimates of future claim payments, except for
the following claims reserved on a periodic payment basis, for which discounted provisions are held:

Mean term of

liabilities

2015 2014 2015 2014
Y%pa %pa Years Years

Periodic Payment basis 3.58 4.5 40 34

Rate

The decrease in the discount rate reflects a change in the methodology applied when setting the rate,
which considers quantitative evaluation of financial instruments of similar terms as well as qualitative
views of the long-term investment potential over the long duration of the liabilities with due regard to the
linked inflation assumption for payment indexation. Any change in discount rates between the start and
the end of the accounting period is reflected within the insurance contract liabilities as a change in
economic assumption.

The period of time which will elapse before the liabilities are settled has been estimated by reference to
medical experts’ reports during claim settlement and Ogden 7 tables view of life expectancy on a claim by
claim basis. The assets held in respect of reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities have also been
discounted in respect of periodic payment order claims.

Total outstanding claims provision before discounting was £4,611m (2014: £4,774m).

Claims development tables

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s ability to estimate the ultimate
value of claims and the top half of each table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of total claims
outstanding for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the table

reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the Statement of Financial Position. An
accident-year basis is considered to be most appropriate for the business written by the Group.
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
Accident year - Gross £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Estimate of ultimate
claims costs:
- at end of accident

year 1,960 2,305 2,281 2,444 2,500 2,418 2,508 2,402 2,482 2,613
- one year later 2,170 2,525 2,529 2,687 2,662 2,514 2,642 2,489 2,571 -
- two years later 2,051 2,382 2,392 2,635 2,568 2,433 2,594 2,427 - -
- three years later 1,993 2,334 2,384 2,618 2,541 2,399 2,550 - - -
- four years later 1,953 2,311 2,378 2,606 2,534 2,379 - - - -
- five years later 1,941 2,304 2,338 2,611 2,528 - - - - -
- six years later 1,929 2,293 2,333 2,608 - - - - - -
- seven years later 1,945 2,292 2,334 - - - - - - -
- eight years later 1,929 2,303 - - - - - - - -
- nine years later 1,933 - - - - - - - - -

Current estimate of
cumulative claims 1,933 2,303 2,334 2,608 2,528 2,379 2,550 2,427 2,571 2,613 24,246
Cumulative payments

to date 1,852 2,265 2,321 2,556 2,428 2,239 2,272 2,092 1,981 1,490 21,496
Liability recognised

in the balance sheet 81 38 13 52 100 140 278 335 590 1,123 2,750
Liability in respect of

prior years < 1,167
Total liability included :

in the balance sheet : ’ 3,917

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
Accident year - Net £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Estimate of ultimate
claims costs:
- at end of accident

year 1,922 2,286 2,264 2,406 2,478 2,392 2,456 2,384 2,454 2,584
- one year later 2,124 2,496 2,512 2,648 2,644 2,498 2,596 2,473 2,543 -
- two years later 2,002 2,353 2,377 2,597 2,550 2,417 2,552 2,411 - -
- three years later 1,915 2,305 2,371 2,581 2,622 2,384 2,506 - - -
- four years later 1,875 2,283 2,365 2,565 2,513 2,364 - - - -
- five years later 1,868 2,276 2,326 2,568 2,504 - - - - -
- six years later 1,854 2,265 2,324 2,566 - - - - - -
- seven years later 1,870 2,265 2,324 - - - - - - -
- eight years later 1,856 2,276 - - - - - - - -
- nine years later 1,859 - - - - - - - - -

Current estimate of
cumulative claims 1,859 2,276 2,324 2,566 2,504 2,364 2,506 2,411 2,543 2,584 23,937
Cumulative payments

to date 1,832 2,250 2,310 2,525 2,412 2,229 2,235 2,078 1,956 1,469 21,296
Liability recognised

in the balance sheet 27 26 14 41 92 135 271 333 587 1,115 2,641
Liability in respect of

prior years 1,164
Liability net of reinsurance )

included in the balance sheet 3,805
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Insurance and reinsurance liabilities

2015 2014
£m £m
Direct and reinsurance inwards insurance liabilities 296 316
Reinsurance liabilities (ceded only) 43 80
Total insurance and reinsurance liabilities 339 396

All amounts are payable within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Borrowings
2015 2014
£m £m
Bank owerdrafts 5 13
Listed unsecured 6 5/8% Company bonds repayable 2023 149 149
Total borrowings 154 162
The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follows:
Carrying value Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Short term borrowings ’ 5 13 5 13
Debentures and other loans 149 149 190 202
154 162 195 215

Short term borrowings are payable within one year of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Debentures and other loans are payable more than one year after the Statement of Financial Position
date.

29. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Vacant
MiB space Other

provision provision provisions Total

£m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2015 26 18 32 76
Charged to income statement 39 4 36 79
Utilised during year : (28) 4) (24) (56)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 37 18 44 99
2015 2014

£m £m

To be settled within 12 months 86 61
To be settled after 12 months 13 15
99 76

a) The MIB provision relates to the levy payable in respect of 2015 premiums and covers both the UK
Motor Insurers’ Bureau and the Motor Insurers’ Bureau of Ireland. The levy is assessed on 2015
premiums and information available from the MIB at the time.
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b) The vacant space provision relates to future rent expenses for leasehold property where the
property is vacant or where the property is sublet and the rents receivable are lower than rents
payable under the terms of the headlease. It is utilised over the remaining periods of the leases.

c) Other provisions include provisions for liabilities arising from the reorganisation of the business and
a levy relating to the London Metropolitan Fire Brigade.

Other liabilities

2015 2014

£m £m
Accruals and deferred income 215 221
Amounts due to immediate parent company - 54 12
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary undertakings 4 -
Social security and other tax payments 88 57
Other liabilities 104 107
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 175 89
Total other liabilities 640 486

Estimated fair values are the amounts recorded at year-end and are payable within one year of the
Statement of Financial Position date. Amounts attributable to unit holders incorporates £175m (2014:
£89m) of the sterling cash mutual fund, which are repayable on demand and the Group is responsible for
ensuring there is sufficient liquidity within the corresponding asset portfolio to enable the liability to be met.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

2015 2014

£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 152 160
Income statement charge (note 11) (49) (13)
Tax credit to equity (note 25) ‘ : 25 5
Balance as at 31 December 128 152

All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset against deferred tax liabilities and hence the net
deferred tax asset at 31 December 2015 was £128m (2014: £152m).

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

~ Deferred tax assets

Retirement Taxlosses

obligations carried Total

forward
£m £m £m’
Balance as at 1 January 2015 23 142 165
income statement (charge) (note 11) ) (11) (18)
Retained earnings 4) - (4)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 12 131 143
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred

income tax assets of £20m (2014: £22m) in respect of losses amounting to £110m (2014: £109m) that can
be carried forward against specific categories of future taxable income.

Deferred tax liabilities

Other
Unrealised short-term
appreciation BEqualisation timing
of investments reserve differences Total
£m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2015 17 30 (34) 13
Income statement charge/(credit) (note 11) 20 (2) 13 31
Revaluation reserve (29) - - (29)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 8 28 (21) 15

The deferred income tax charged or (credited) to the statement of other comprehensive income during the
year gross of transfers to retained earnings is as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

Retained earnings: retirement obligations (4) 11
Revaluation resene: financial assets 29 (6)
25 5

Retirement benefit obligations

AXA UK Pension Scheme

Staff engaged in the Company’s activities are members of the AXA UK Pension Scheme which embraces
a number of companies in the AXA UK Group. The Scheme has both defined benefit and defined
contribution sections but the Company is unable to accurately identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the defined benefit section. There is no contractual agreement or stated policy for
charging the net defined benefit cost to the Company, as such the Company has recognised within the
financial statements a cost equal to its contribution for the period. On 31 August 2013 the AXA UK
Pension Scheme closed to future accrual and all remaining active members moved to deferred status.

Responsibility for the governance of the plan, including investment decisions, contribution schedules and
scheme administration, lies with a single trustee board consisting of company appointed directors and
member nominated directors. Additionally, the Law Debenture Pension Trust Corporation is a director,
acting on behalf of the Trustee board with Special Director status.

In 2015, as a measure to reduce the plan deficit, the Scheme received a contribution of £310m, which it
subsequently invested into AXA Scotland Limited Partnership (“SLP”), a company within the AXA UK
Group. SLP holds £350m of long term interest bearing debt of AXA. In accordance with the terms of the
partnership agreement, the scheme is initially entitled to the principle and interest repayments of the debt.

An internal review by AXA UK of the defined benefit scheme, subsequently reviewed by Willis Towers
Watson, revealed an IAS 19R deficit of £381m as at 31 December 2015 (£542m as at 31 December 2014)
before taking account of any tax relief and after reflecting the investment in SLP. This represents a
snapshot of the present cost of meeting pension obligations that will crystallise over a period of many
years. The Scheme invests in a wide range of assets, including equities, which over the long term, are
expected by the Directors to produce higher returns than those underlying the assessment of the deficit as
at 31 December 2015.
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The AXA UK Group made additional contributions totalling £102m (2014: £82m) to the Scheme, in
accordance with the ten year plan to reduce the deficit and to ensure that the Statutory Funding Objective
is met. The appropriate level of contributions to be paid under the recovery plan are based on the
actuarial valuation performed every three years, however, these may change more frequently if significant
events occur in the year. These contributions have been charged to the underlying operating companies
based on a management allocation. Companies within this consolidation paid £51m (2014: £73m) of this
amount.

Although the scheme is being accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, the following disclosures
are required to be shown in respect of the Scheme.

2015 2014
Discount rate 3.9% 3.8%
Future pension increases 3.1% 2.7%
Inflation assumption 2.1% 1.9%

The 2015 year end valuation was calculated on a full yield curve rather than a single equivalent rate which
has been used in previous years. This change provides a more accurate approach that is more in line
with a general move in the market to use a market consistent approach to valuing the liabilities, and is
anticipated to be used going forward. The single rates disclosed for 2015 are representative of the rates
used in the valuation.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m
Present value of obligation as at 1 January 4,583 4,123
Current senvice cost 8 6
Interest cost 171 186
Actuarial (gains)/losses (34) 440
Benefits paid (208) (172)
Present value of obligation as at 31 December 4,520 4,583
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m
Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 4,041 3,583
Expected return on plan assets 158 163
Employer contributions paid by AXA UK plc 52 5
Employer contributions paid by other participating entities 58 84
Asset backed contribution 310 -
Benefits paid (208) (172)
Actuarial (losses)/gains (272) - 378
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 4,139 4,041
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Analysis of assets by category

2015 2014
£m £m
Equities 67 84
Debt securities 2,111 2,407
Government 1,465 1,487
Government related - 123
Corporate 646 703
Other : - 94
Property 307 245
Other assets 1,344 1,305
Derivatives (182) 31
Loans - 27
Cash 29 74
Investment funds 1,497 1,173
Asset backed security 310
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 4,139 4,041

Other defined benefit pension schemes

a)

b)

The Group operates the AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme which is a defined benefit scheme. The
scheme is an unfunded arrangement and therefore no company contributions were paid during the
accounting period or are to be paid in the future. However, the Group has paid the current pensions in
payment over the year of £2m. The AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme has been closed to new
members since 1999.

A subsidiary of the Group offers certain healthcare benefits, on a non-contributory basis, to
substantially all employees who were employed prior to June 1999, upon retirement. The expected
costs of this benefit have been assessed in accordance with the advice of an independent qualified
actuary as at 31 December 2015.

The Group’s subsidiary in Ireland operated a contributory defined benefit scheme which provided
benefits based on length of service and pensionable salary at retirement age. The scheme closed to
future accrual with an effective date of 31 July 2015 and was closed to new membership at the end of
2005. The deferred member benefits increase in line with inflation and are capped at 4% p.a., and
pension increases are discretionary and shall not exceed 1.35% p.a. compound cumulative from 1
April 2017 except with prior consent of the principal employer.

The defined benefit scheme assets are held in a separately administered fund and benefits are paid
from the scheme assets. Currently, assets are primarily invested in Bonds and Equities and the asset
allocation has moved to a liability driven investment strategy in order to hedge the interest rate risk on
both an economic basis and on a minimum funding standard basis, a prescribed test set by the Irish
Pensions regulator. The long term target allocation is 90% Bonds and 10% Growth assets.

A new funding policy was agreed between the trustees and the company during the yeaf. Under this
funding policy the company agreed to pay contributions over six years with the goal of eliminating the
plan deficit. The expected employer funding contributions for 2016 is £13m.

An independent actuarial review by Mercer, on which the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are based, was carried out at 31 December 2015.

Full details of the AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme, Healthcare benefit scheme and the Irish pension
scheme can be seen in the following tables:
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The principal assumptions used by the actuaries were:

2015 2014
UK UK
Top-up  Healthcare Top-up Healthcare

scheme scheme Ireland scheme scheme Ireland
Discount rate 3.9% 3.9% 2.6% 3.8% 3.8% 2.2%
Future salary increases - - - - - . 28%
Future pension increases 3.1% - 1.4% 2.7% - 1.8%
Inflation assumption 2.1% 8.0% 1.8% 1.9% 8.0% 1.8%
Life expectancy for pensioners at regular retirement age
Male 28 24 27 29 24 27
Female 30 26 29 30 25 29

Mortality tables - UK schemes

The following tables were used for the 2015 actuariai review:

Mortality for male members is assumed to follow the standard SAPS 2 Light tables applicable to each
individual's year of birth with a 95% multiplier and no age rating. Future improvements in these mortality
rates are in line with those applying from 2007 in accordance with the CMI 2015 Core Projection Model,
with a long term improvement rate of 1.25% pa.

Mortality for female members is assumed to follow the standard SAPS 2 Light tables applicable to each
individual's year of birth with a 87% multiplier and no age rating. Future improvements in these mortality
rates are in line with those applying from 2007 in accordance with the CMI 2015 Core Projection Model,
with a long term improvement rate of 1.25% pa.

The following tables were used for the 2014 actuarial review:

Mortality for male members is assumed to follow the standard SAPS Light tables applicable to each
individual's year of birth with a 101% multiplier and no age rating. Future improvements in these mortality
rates are in line with those applying from 2002 in accordance with the CMI 2011 Core projection Model,
with a long term improvement rate of 1% pa.

Mortality for female members is assumed to follow the standard SAPS Light tables applicable to each
individual's year of birth with a 103% multiplier and no age rating. Future improvements in these mortality
rates are in line with those applying from 2002 in accordance with the CMI 2011 Core projection Model,
with a long term improvement rate of 1% pa.

Mortality tables — Ireland scheme

The mortality tables used in valuing the liabilities were S2PMA/S2PFA with CMI 2013 (1.5%) — 2 year age
rating.
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Pensions and other post-retirement obligations

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total

2015 2015 2015 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations 27 1 414 452 536
Fair value of plan assets: (395) (395) (401)
Equities - - (101) (101) (107)
Debt securities - - (286) (286) (287)
Property - - (4) 4) 3)
Cash - - (4) (4) (4)
Net liability in the balance sheet 27 11 19 57 135

All investments are quoted in active markets. No properties included in plan assets are occupied by the

Group.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss are as follows:

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total

2015 2015 2015 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m
Current senvice cost - - 3 3 3
Plan amendment and curtailments - - (30) (30) (2)
Total senice cost - - (27) (27) 1
Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 1 1 10 12 15
Interest income on plan assets - - (9) 9) (13)
Total included within employee benefit
expenses 1 1 (26) (24) 3

The total cost recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss for defined benefit schemes
amounted to £27m in 2015 (2014: £76m). This represents a £24m credit (2014: £3m) for the schemes
reported on balance sheet and £51m (2014: £73m) for the AXA UK Merged scheme.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income are as follows:

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total

2015 2015 2015 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m
Actual return on assets - - 12 12 72
less expected return on scheme assets - - (8) (8) (13)
Experience gains on assets - - 4 4 59
Experience (losses)/gains on liabilities (4) - - 4) 1
Change in demographic assumptions - - - - (3)
Change in financial assumptions - - 33 33 (144)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on
pension benefits (4) - 37 33 (87)
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of obligation as at 1 January 24 10 502 536 422
Exchange - - (27) (27) (32)
Current senvice cost - - 3 3 3
Interest cost 1 1 10 12 15
Employee contributions - - 1 1 1
Plan ammendment and curtailment - - (30) (30) (2)
Actuarial (gains)/losses 4 - (33) (29) 146
Benefits paid (2) - (12) (14) 17)
Present value of obligation as at
31 December 27 11 414 452 536
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January - - 401 401 353
Exchange - - (21) (21) (27)
Expected return on plan assets - - 8 8 13
Employer contributions - - 14 14 16
Employee contributions - - 1 1 1
Benefits paid - - (12) (12) (14)
Actuarial gains - - 4 4 59
Fair value of plan assets as at
31 December - - 395 395 401
History of experience gains and losses
UK
Top-up scheme Healthcare scheme Ireland
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Difference between expected and
actual retum on scheme assets:
- amount - gain/(loss) £m - - - - 4 59
- percentage of scheme assets - - - - 1.0% 14.7%
Experience gains and losses on
obligations:
- amount - (loss)/gain £m (4) - - ) - 4
- percentage of the present -
value of the obligations (14.8)% - - (30.0)% - 0.8%
Total amount recognised outside
income statement:
- amount - (loss)/gain £m (4) - - (4) 37 (83)
- percentage of the present
value of the obligations (14.8)% - - (40.0)% 8.9% (16.5)%
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Estimated future benefits to be paid by the assets or the employer
The following payments are estimated future contributions and benefits to be paid in the future yéars out

of the defined benefit plan obligation. The estimated payments are subject to uncertainty as they will be
notably driven by economics of future years.

2015

£m

2016 14
2017 14
2018 15
2019 15
2020 16
Between 5 years and 10 years - 89
Beyond 10 years 629
Total estimated payments 792

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligations at the end of the reporting period are 11
years, 13 years and 20 years for the Top up scheme, Healthcare scheme and Ireland scheme
respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The defined benefit plans are exposed to market investment risk, interest rate risk, inflationary risk and

longevity risk. A decline in asset market values will immediately increase the balance sheet liability and a

decrease in corporate bond yields will result in an increase in plan liabilities even if this effect will be

partially offset by an increase in the asset value of debt securities. An increase in inflation rate or an
" increase in life expectancy will result in higher plan liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial assumptions as at 31 December 2015 is shown below:

Salary Medical

Life Discount Inflation increase inflation
expectancy rates rates rate rate
Impact on the net defined benefit obligation of
0.5% increase (42) 16 - 1
0.5% decrease 46 (20) - 1)
1 year increase measured at retirement age 14
1 year decrease measured at retirement age (14)

The sensitivity analysis is performed on a plan by plan basis using the projected unit credit method and
based on a change in an assumption whilst holding all other assumptions constant.

Estimated employer contributions

The estimated amount of 2016 employer contributions to be paid by Companies included within this
consolidation for defined benefit schemes is £73m.

Defined contribution schemes

The cost of the contributions paid for defined contribution schemes was recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and amounted to £37m in 2015 (2014: £34m).
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33. Cash generated from operations

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before tax and profit on disposal of operations 263 226
Depreciation and fixed asset write-offs 6 9
Depreciation of investment properties 3 2
Amortisation of intangibles and impairments 17 20
Realised and unrealised investment (losses) (16) (54)
Amortisation of available for sale investments 29 18
Impairment charge on available for sale investments 29 43
Impairment charge on investment properties 1 1
Change in insurance technical provisions 128 50
Change in other assets and liabilities (98) (55)
Interest expense 10 10
Interest income (226) (242)
Dividend income - (28) (27)
Cash generated from operations 118 1
34. Related parties
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:
2015 2014
Related Party £m £m
Income
Gross written premiums Fellow subsidiaries 81 108
Recharges of business senices intermediate parent 89 48
' Fellow subsidiaries 37 50
Income on loans and
debt securities Ultimate parent 1 1
Immediate parent 6 6
Fellow subsidiaries 4 7
Total 218 220
Expenses
Claims paid Fellow subsidiaries 39 80
Reinsurance premiums paid Fellow subsidiaries 121 143
Acquisition costs Fellow subsidiaries 4 2
Commissions paid Fellow subsidiaries 42 31
Business senices Fellow subsidiaries 71 81
Total 277 337

Related companies provide the .IT and data processing services on behalf of the Group. Services are
negotiated with related parties on a cost basis. Investment properties and investment asset portfolios are
managed by related party companies.
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2015 2014
Assets Related party £m £m
Loans and bonds to related parties
Investment bonds Parent - 91 101
Fellow subsidiary 120 113
Interest bearing loans Immediate parent 77 83
Non interest bearing loans Immediate parent 237 238
Insurance and reinsurance
receivables Fellow subsidiaries 146 180
Total 671 715
A 2015 2014
Liabilities Related party £m £m
Insurance related creditors
Outstanding claims Fellow subsidiaries 114 167
Earned commissions Fellow subsidiaries 8 19
Claims settlement costs Fellow subsidiaries 4 15
Total 126 201
Summary of movements on loans
and bonds: A
Opening balance 535 595
Additions during year 7 113
Repayments (17) (173)
Closing balance 525 535
Assets managed by fellow subsidiaries
Available for sale investments 5,202 . 4,247
Fair value through income statement 494 1,435
Loans and receivables 97 70
Investment property 139 131
Total 5,932 5,883

The loans and receivables are unsecured and bear no interest except as disclosed in note 22. No
provisions are held against receivables from related parties (2014: nil). Related party receivables and
payables are disclosed in notes 22 and 30.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are classified as employees and directors who have authority and
responsibility for planning and controlling the Company’s activities. Key management is defined as the key
management of AXA Insurance UK plc, AXA PPP healthcare limited and AXA Insurance Limited, which
includes the Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer of AXA UK plc, who would have
been included had they not been included in the definition of key management for AXA Insurance UK pilc,
AXA PPP healthcare limited and AXA Insurance Limited. '

The directors receive compensation by virtue of their employment with the AXA Group and this is paid by
companies within the AXA Group. The total compensation to those employees classified as key
management who have authority and responsibility for planning and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, is as follows:
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2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Salary and other short-term benefits 11,236 12,640
Post-employment benefits 255 550
Other long-term benefits 3,166 2,858
Termination benefits - 417
Total 14,657 : 16,465

During the year, one member of the key management had an interest in a loan from AXA Insurance
Limited. The outstanding balance of this loan at the end of the year was £95,695 (2014: £110,322).

Commitments
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding capital commitments of £2m (2014: £6m) in respect
of property owned by subsidiary AXA PPP healthcare Limited.

Financial commitments

Outstanding commitments at 31 December 2015 are listed in the table. These have been translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at year end.

2015 2014

£m £m
Alternative credit fund (2015: €38.3m) (2014: €nil) 28 -
Debt fund (2015: $7.1m) (2014: $7.8m) 5 5
Mezzanine debt fund - 9
Alternative credit fund (2015: $95.2m) (2014: $106.8m) 80 : 77

113 91

Operating lease commitments — where a Group company is the lessee
The commitments relate mainly to land and buildings and are subject to rent reviews.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

No later than 1 year 9 11
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 26 25
Later than 5 years 25 26
60 62

Operating lease commitments - where a Group company is the lessor

The commitments relate to investment properties and are subject to rent reviews. The carrying amount of
the associated assets is £139m (2014: £131m) shown within note 15.
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The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

No later than 1 year 11 9
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 37 31
Later than 5 years 22 23
70 63

Directors’ emoluments

The directors are employed and paid by companies in the AXA group and their directorships are held as
part of that employment. Other than as disclosed below, no director has received any emoluments or
other benefits from the Company or from any other company in the AXA group in respect of services to
the Company.

2015 2014
£000 £°000
Aggregate emoluments excluding amounts receivable under
long-term incentive schemes 650 644
Amounts receivable (excluding gains on exercise of share
options and value of shares received) under
long-term incentive schemes 110 34
Aggregate pension contributions:
Defined contribution 79 47
Amounts attributable to highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments 452 369
Defined contribution scheme pension:
Pension contributions during the year 28 27

Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors (2014: two) under a defined contribution pension
scheme.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions
No contract in which a director was interested and which was material to the Group or its subsidiaries or to
the other transacting party existed during the year.

Loans to Directors and Connected Persons
No loans or quasi-loans exceeding £5,000 to directors and connected persons were made or subsisted
during the year.

None of the directors exercised share options or employee sharesave options in AXA UK plc during the
year (2014: none).

Mr. B. Poupart-Lafarge was also a director of AXA UK plc, during the year and his emoluments, which
relate to his services to the AXA Group as a whole, are disclosed in the financial statements of that
company.
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Contingent liabilities

With the approval of the Prudential Regulation Authority, AXA Insurance plc, AXA Insurance UK plc and
AXA PPP healthcare limited have entered into a mutual guarantee whereby each company guarantees
payment of all liabilities incurred by the others in respect of general insurance business. AXA Insurance
plc receives no benefit from the guarantee.

As at 31 December 2015, in the event that a government grant previously received became repayable,
AXA Insurance UK plc would be liable to the amount of £1.2m (2014: £0.8m).

Acquisitions

On 1 August 2015, the Group’s intermediate and direct subsidiary companies, AXA PPP healthcare
Limited and AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited, acquired the private medical insurance business of
Simplyhealth, consisting of the private medical insurance book and the entity responsible for the
administration of trusts and self-funded business, Simplyhealth Administration Services Limited. On 13
July 2015, the Group’s intermediate subsidiary, Healthcare and Protection Solutions Limited, acquired The
Permanent Health Company Limited, an insurance intermediary specialising in private medical insurance.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Simplyhealth and The Permanent Health
Company, the fair value of assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Acquisition of

Acquisition of Acquisition of The Simplyhealth

Simplyhealth private Permanent Health Administration Senices

medical book Company Ltd

£m £m £m

Cash consideration 40 : 9.3 10.1
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed

£m £m £m

Customer related intangible (note 16) 6.9 1.7 56

Land and buildings (note 14) 13.1 - ' -

Debtors 62.7 0.2 0.9

Tangible assets 1.1 - -

Cash at bank and.in hand 37.3 4.2 19.9

Technical provisions (84.7) - -

Other creditors (3.9) (2.0) (19.3)

Total identifiable net assets 32.5 4.1 7.1

Goodwill (note 16) 7.5 ) 5.2 3.0

Total 40.0 9.3 10.1

Events occurring after the reporting period
The Group has no post balance sheet events which require disclosure.
Immediate and ultimate parent

The Group’s immediate parent is AXA UK plc, a company incorporated in Great Britain and registered in
England and Wales.

The parent undertaking of the largest group which includes the Group and for which group financial
statements are prepared is AXA. Copies of the AXA Group financial statements can be obtained from 23,
avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Guardian Royal Exchange plc

We have audited the parent company financial -statements of Guardian Royal Exchange plc (the
‘Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2015, which comprise the Parent Company Balance Sheet,
the Parent Company Accounting Policies and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. This
report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the Company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's web-site www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Parent Company financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its profit
for the year then ended;

e« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the parent company financial statements are prepared is. consistent with the parent company
financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or '

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Other matter

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Guardian Royal Exchange plc for the
year ended 31December 2015.

: \
Andrew Goldsworthy %;}:::Lks‘::)tory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

E1W 1DD

26 April 2016
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as at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m

Fixed assets

Shares in subsidiary undertakings 1 1,942 1,942
Current assets

Debtors 2 135 101
Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year 3 (166) (525)
Net current liabilities (31) (424)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,911 1,518
Creditors

Amounts falling due after more than one year 4 (149) (149)
Net assets 1,762 1,369
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 5,6 56 56

Share premium account 5,6 523 523

Capital redemption reserve 6 189 189

Capital contribution reserve 6 271 271

Profit and loss account 6 723 330
Total shareholders’ funds 6 1,762 1,369

The separate financial statements on pages 85 to 91 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 26 April 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

ﬂ

B. Poupart-Lafarge
Director
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(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
()
(9
(h)

)

Iv.

General Information

Guardian Royal Exchange plc (“the Company”) acts as a holding company for its subsidiaries which
underwrite general insurance and healthcare business mainly in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland.

The Company is a public limited company under the Companies Act 2006, and is incorporated and
domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is 5 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1AD.

Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”). The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006. .

This is the Company'’s first set of full year results prepared in accordance with FRS 101 accounting
policies and its previously reported 2014 financial statements have accordingly been restated to
comply with FRS 101, with the date of transition to FRS 101 being 1 January 2014. The effects of the
adoption of FRS 101 are immaterial to the financial statements as a whole; and this is discussed in
note 10 on first time adoption.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 101 requires management to monitor
and exercise judgment in the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies and in the
use of accounting estimates. Management has determined that there are no accounting policies
subject to significant accounting policy judgement.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of
these financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present
comparative information in respect of:

i. paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;

ii. paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets

The requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, and 111
of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure.

The requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

The requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered
into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the
transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

The requirements of paragraph 130(f)(ii), 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135 (c) to 135 (e) of IAS 36
Impairment of Assets, provided that equivalent disclosures are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the group in which the entity is consolidated

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s profit and loss account has
not been included in these financial statements.

Investment income
Investment income consists of interest, dividends and realised gains. Dividend income is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established. Other investment income is recognised when due to

be received.

Interest payable and expenses incurred in the management of investments are accounted for on an
accruals basis.

86



Registered Number 01821312

Parent Company — Notes to the Financial Statements continued

V.

VL.

VIL.

Realised and unrealised investment gains and losses

Realised investment gains and losses are calculated by reference to the net sales proceeds and the
original purchase cost. Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between
the valuation of the investment at the balance sheet date and their original cost or if they have been
previously valued, their valuation at the last balance sheet date.

Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost unless their value has been impaired, in
which case they are valued at their realisable value or value in use as appropriate. The investments
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The reviews use discounted cash flow projections under different
scenarios.

Current and deferred taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the Profit and Loss Account because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
value amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Profit and Loss Account,
except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income. '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.
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Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

VIll. Foreign currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end
exchange rates. Exchange gains and losses are treated as part of the investment return in the profit
and loss account.

1. Shares in subsidiary undertakings

2015 2014
£m £m
Carrying value at 1 January and 31 December 1,942 1,942
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Country of Holdings of

incorporation ordinary

or registration shares
Insurance companies
AXA Insurance UK plc England 100%
AXA PPP healthcare limited England 100%
AXA Insurance Limited Ireland 100%
Other companies
AXA Insurance plc England 100% (Parent)
AXA General Insurance Limited England 100%
AXA Holdings Ireland Limited lreland 100%
AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited England 100% (Parent)
AXA Senvices Limited England 100% (Parent)
Health On-line Company UK Limited England 100%
ICAS Intemational Holdings Limited England 100%
AXA PPP Healthcare administration Senices Limited England 100%
Health and Protection Solutions Limited England 100%
The Permanent Health Company Limited England 100%
AXA ICAS Occupational Health Senices Limited England 100%
AXA Healthcare Management (Asia Regional Centre)
PTE Limited Singapore 100%
AXA PPP Administration Senices Limited England 100%
AXA ICAS Limited England 100%
ICAS Orientacion Independiente S. L. ) Spain 100%
ICAS Employee and Organisation Enhancement Senices
Southern Africa (PTY) Limited South Africa 80%
AXA UK Pension Trustees Limited England 100%
The Royal Exchange Assurance England 100%
AXA Pension Fund Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Ireland Pension Trustees Limited Ireland 100%
AXA Assistance Ireland Limited ’ Ireland 100%
AXA Group Senices Limited Ireland - 100%
Knight Law Limited England 100%
Swiftcowver Insurance Senices Limited England 100%
Ignition New Business Solutions Limited " England 100%
GRE Nominee Shareholdings Limited England 100%
Notes:

1. The country of principal operation for each of the above companies is the country of incorporation.

2. All holdings of ordinary shares are held by a subsidiary unless stated parent as above.
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Debtors-amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 131 97
Taxation 4 4
Total amounts falling due within one year 135 . 101

The above amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, payable on demand and interest
free.

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts owed to intermediate parent company 51 10
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 111 511
Other creditors 4 4
Total amounts falling due within one year 166 525

The above amounts owed to intermediate parent company and subsidiary undertakings are unsecured,
payable on demand and interest free.

Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Non-bank loans ower 5 years: listed unsecured 6 5/8%
Company bonds repayable in 2023 149 149
Total amounts falling due after more than one year 149 149
Called up share capital
2015 2014
Shares £m Shares £m
Issued and fully paid ordinary .

shares of 5.25p each 1,059,785,981 56 1,059,785,981 56
2015 2014

Share premium account £m £m
Balance as at 31 December 523 ' 523
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Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Called up Share Capital Capital Profit
share premium redemption contribution and loss

capital account reserve reserve account Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2014 56 523 189 271 506 1,545
Loss for the year - - - - (8) (8)
Dividend paid on equity shares - - - - (168) (168)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 56 523 189 271 330 1,369
Profit for the year - - - - 393 393
Balance as at 31 December 2015 56 523 189 271 723 1,762

The capital redemption reserve is non-distributable and was created in 1998 on the redemption of B
shares.

The capital contribution reserve represents capital contributions received in 2003 and 2013, from its
immediate parent, AXA UK plc.

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2015 contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financial
statements amounted to £nil (2014: £nil).

Immediate and ultimate parent

The Company’s immediate parent is AXA UK plc, a company registered in England. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company’s ultimate parent and controlling company is AXA, a company incorporated in
France.

The parent undertaking of the largest group which includes the Company and for which group financial
statements are prepared is AXA. Copies of the AXA Group financial statements can be obtained from 25,
avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France.

Directors’ emoluments
The directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 36 of the Group consolidated financial statements.
Transition to FRS 101

The Company has adopted FRS 101 for these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Previously the financial statements were prepared in accordance with UK GAAP. In order to show
comparative balances, the year ended 31 December 2014 has also been prepared in accordance with
FRS 101. The date of transition to FRS 101 is 1 January 2014.

In preparing these financial statements in accordance with FRS 101, the Company has started from an
opening balance sheet as at 1 January 2014, and made those changes in accounting policies and other
restatements required for first time adoption of FRS 101. The effects of these restatements and
adjustments are immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.
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